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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year anded 31 Decembar 2012

Dirgctors’ report
The directors submit thenr apnual repost #nd the audited consolidated and parent company financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Business raview and principal activities

The pnncipal activity of the Group 1s the specialist supply of frozen chilled and ambient foods as well 8s catenng supphes and equipment to the catsnng ndustry The prncpal trading
companies in the Group are Brake Bros Limited Brake Bros Focdservice Limited M8J Seafood Lumited Wild Harvest Limited Q Kane Food Service Limited Freshfayre Limited Brake
Bros Foodsarvice Irefand Limited Brake France Service SAS and Menigo Foodservica AB Brake Bros Limited 1s a imited company incorporated in England and Wales and domicled
and operating n tha LUnited Kingdom

The resuits for the Group for the year are sst cut in the consolidated ncome statement on page 4

The results for the Group show a pre-tax profit of £59 0m (2011 £652m) for the year and revenue of £2 897 7m (2011 £2 449 8m) The results for the year are after charging
exceptional items of £22 7m {2011 £18 6m) referred to in nota 2 of these financal statements

P risks and uncer

The directors of the largest UK parent undertaking Cucina Lux Irvestments Limited manage s Group s nsks and performance through its immediate subsidiary company Cucina
Investments (UK) 3 Limited For this reason a discussion of the Group 8 nske, together with an analysts using key performance indicators has not been included by the Company's
directors  The pnncipal nsks and uncertanties, together with the development performance and pestion and an analysis usng key performance ndicators of the Cucina Lux
Investments Limited Group, wiich include these of the Company and the Group are discussed in the business review of Cucina Lux tnvestments Limited 3 annual repert, which doas not
form part of this report

Future outlook and going concem

The going concem of the company 1s dependent upon the overall going concem of the group In assessing whether the financial statemnents for the Group and Company should be
prepared on the gang concem basis the directors hava considerad the future outieok of the Company and of the Group on a combined basis A fuller anatysis of this cutlook and the
basis for this assessment 18 sat out in the financial statements of the largest UK parent company, Gucina Lux Investments Limited Having sonsidered the future operatng profits cash
flows and facilites available {o the Group the directors are satisfied that the Group will have sufficisnt funds to repay its habilites as they fall due Consequently the financial statements
of the Group and the Company are prepared on the going concern basis

Dividends
No interim dividends have baen paid (2011 £rif) and the directors do not rac d a final dvidend (2011 £nil)

Diractors

The directors of the Company who were In office dunng the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements are given below
IR Goldsmith

A J Whitehead

S P Smith

D C Lennard

P Wieland (appointed 3 January 2012)

P Mcintyre (appointed 27 February 2012)

P E R Jansen was a director dunng the year but resigned as a director on 1 Apnl 2013
Dunng the year S Barden was appointed as a director on 3 January 2012 and res:gnad on 30 Septernber 2012
K McMeikan was appointed as a director on 1 Apnl 2013

Directors’ third party indemnity provisions

A qualtying third-party Indemnity provisien as defined in Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 18 in force for the benefit of each of the directors In respect of llabiltes mcurred as a
result of therr office 1o the extent permitted by law In respect of those labiliies for which directors may not be indemnified the Company mantaned & directors and officars liabilty
insuranca policy throughout the financial year and to the date of approval of thesa financial stataments

Employment report

The Group aims to keep employees aware of all matenal factors affacting them as employees and the performance of the Group and theirr respective businesses It encourages good
communication through reguiar meetngs between management and staff enabling senior managers ta consult and ascenain employees views on afl appropnate matters  This is
supplemented by regular bnefings intranet and e-mail bulleting and dwisional newslettars Employess are encouraged to partcipate in the performanca of the Group by way of bonus
schemes

The Group employs over 10000 people We provide extensive traning and career development programmes I 1 our pelicy 1o achieve and mantain a high standard of health and
safety at work and to ensure everyone regardiess of race religion or sex and including disabled people where reasonable and practcable is ireated n the same way as regands
applications for employment frauning career development and promotion  Every effort is made to help with the rehabilitation of anyone injured dunng therr employment and to provide
support we have an Employea Care Programme

Health and safety

A8 a business the Group is strongly comnuited to providing a safe and responaible place to work Concem for the wellbeing of our staff 18 a kay element in our dnva to ba a great place
to work® and we demonstrate this commitmant through ongoing traming and education of all our employees, working closaly with our insurance providars and equipment suppliers to
ensure gharnng of bast practice and leading edge health and safaty solutons

Supplier payment policy

The Group s palicy is generally to agree terms of payment with suppliers to setfle invoicas accordingly The Group does not follow any code or statemaent on payment practice but it 1s
Group pohicy that payments to suppliers are nomnally made on the basis of the terms that have been agreed with them For the Group the average number of days taken to pay suppliers
nvoices dunng the year was 53 days (2011 54 days} For the Company the average number of days taken to pay suppliers invoices dunng the year was 53 days (2011 56 days)

Donatlons

The Group actvely supporis and sncourages chantable actwity i support of the communty  Drredl donabons and suppon 1o natonal and focal chamatie cryanisalons amountng to
£2 875 (2011 £10 463) and £1 442 (2011 86 410) raspectively were made In the year Direct donations and support to naticnal chantable organisatons dunng the year included
£1 000 to the Royal Britsh Legion £975 for Seang 18 Believing £500 for Help the Heroes and £400 for Rise Afnca  No donations wene made to any poltical party (2011 £mil)

Land and buildings
The diractors consider that the Group s and Company’s market value of land and buildings 1s £93 9m (2011 £85 1m) and £59 7m (2011 £60 Om) reapactrvely
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financlal statoments
For the year ended 31 Decomber 2012

Directors' report (continued)

Financlal risk management
The Group has opsratons in the UK the Republic of Ireland and Continental Europe and has debt financing which axposes it to a varisty of financial risks that include the effects of
changes n foreign currency exchange rates interast rates cradit nske and hquidity nsk

The UK Group s Board of Directors have the responsibility for seting the risk management policies arm implemented by the central treasury department that recerves reguiar reports from
the oparating comparues to enable prompt dentficabon of financal nsks so that the appropaate actons may ba taken The UK Greup has a policy and procadures manual that sets out
specific gudelinea lo manage foreign currency exchange nsk, interast rate risk credit risk hquidity nsk and the use of tha financial nstrumeants 1o manags thess Further information on
thes® 13 a!so given in note 16 of thess financial statements

{a) Foreign currency exchange risk
The Group has operations i the UK, the Republic of Irgland France and Sweden Ths Group 1s exposed lo foreign exchange nsks primanty with respect to the Euro and the Swedish
Krona

{b) Interast rate risk
The Group has both interast beanng assets and interest beanng babiities

{c} Credit rigk
The Group has no signdicant concantrations of cred:t risk The Group has implemented policies that require appropnats credit chacks on potential customers beforo salas commence

{d) Liquidity nsk

The Group actvely mantains a mixture of long-term and short-term faciites including amounts funded from parent gs that are designed to ensure the Group has sufficent
lables funds for op and plarned expansrons
Independent auditors

PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP shall remain i office untl the Company or PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP otherwise determmne

Disclosume of information to auditors
So far &3 the directors are aware there ia no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware and the directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken as directers
in order to make themsslvas aware of any relevant audit informabon and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that informaton

Statemant of directors’ responsibliitiss
The directors are raspons:bla for prepanng the annual report end the financial statements in accordancs with applicable Law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statemments for each financial year Under that lew the directors have prepared the group and parent company financial
stataments in accordancs with Intemational Financial Reporing Standards (IFRSs) as adepted by the European Union  Under company law tha directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satsfied that thay gve a trua and far view of the state of affars of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that penod

In prepanng thess financial statements the directors are required to

selact sutable accounting policies and then appty them consistently

make judgements and accountng estmates that are reasonable and prudent,

stats whether applicable IFRSs as adopied by the European Union have béen followed subject to eny matenal departures disclosed and exptained in the financal statements and
prepare the group financial staterents on the gong concern basis unless it I1s inappropriate to presume that the company will conbinue in business.

The directors ara responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient 1o show and explan the company's transactions and disciosa with reasonable accuracy at any
tme the financial position of the company and the group and anabla them %o ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the asssta of the company and the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other Imegulanties

Approved by tha Board of Dwrectors and signed on its behatf by

Company registration number 02035315
A
- u Registared offica
L Enterprise House

. Eureka Business Park
AJ Itahaad Ashford
Director Kant
12 Apnl 2013 TNZ5 4AG
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012
Independent auditors’ report to the members of Braks Bros Limitad

We have audited the group and parent company financal statements (the financial stetements™) of Brake Broa Limited for the ysar endsd 31 Decembar 2012 which comprise the
consolidated incoms statement, the consolidated and company staternents of comprehensive income the consolidated and company statements of financial position the consolidated
and company statements of changes in equity ihe consolidated and company statements of cash flow and the related notas Tha financial reparting framework that has been appled n

their preparabon 13 applicable law and Intermatonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS$) &8 adopted by the European Union and as regands the parent company financal statements
as appiled in accord: with the px of the C: Act 2006

Respecth P Ibilities of directors and auditors

As explaingd more fully In the statement of diactors responsibiities as set out on page 2 the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
sahafied that they give a true and far view Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statsmants in accordanca with applicable law and Intemational Standards
on Auditing {UK and Iretand) Those standards require us {6 comply with the Auditing Prachcas Boar's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Thus report, includmg the opmions has been prepared for and anly for the company’s members as a body in accordance with Chaptar 3 of Part 18 of tha Comparuas Act 2006 and for no
other purpese  We do not in grving thess opivons accept or assume responsitility for any other purpose o to any other person to whom this report (s shown or into whosa hands it may
come save where sxpressly agreed by our pnor consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An gudit iInvolves obtanng evidence about the amounts and disciosures in the financial aMmicient to grve 1 ble assurance that the financial stetements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or emor  This includas an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriata to the groups and parent company's
crcumstances and have been conastently applied and adequately disciosed the reasonableness of significant accountng astimates made by the directors and tha overall presentation
of the financlal statements In addition wa read all the financial and non-financial informatien m the annual report to idantfy material inconsistences with the audited financial stataments
If we bacome aware of any apparent material misatatemants or nconsistancies we conaider the imphications for our report.

Op onfi 1al
In our opimon

= the financial statements give a trua and fair view of the tata of the group s and of the parent company's affars as at 31 December 2012 and of the group s profit and group s and parent
company's cash flows for the year then ended
= the group finandcal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSa as adopisd by the European Union

- the parent pany | stat its have been property prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accord with the provisiens of
the Companies Act 2008, and

« tha financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the raquirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinlon on cther mattar d by the Companles Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the directors. report for the financial year for whnch the financial statements are prepared 1s consistert with the financal statements

Mattars on which we are required to mport by sxception

Wo have nothing to report In respect of the following mattars whers the C Act 2006

p q us to report to you if 1 our apinion

~ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company or ratums adsqguate tor our audit have not been recanved from branches not visited by us or
+ the parent company financial are not in agreemaent with the accounting records and retumns or

= cartan disclosures of directors remuneration specifisd by law are not made, or

~wa have not received all the snformation and explanations we raquire for our audit

Christopher Bumns (Senlor Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London

12 Apnl 2013
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Consohdated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 20Mm
Notes £m £m

Continuing operations
Revenue 2 2,8977 24498
Operating costs {2,830 6) {2 382 3)
Oparating profit 2 671 675
Operating profit before exceptional items 898 861
Exceptional tems 2 {227) (18 6}
Finance costs 3 {202) (16 0}
Finance income 3 121 128
Finance costs - net {81) {32)
Share of profits of associate - 09
Profit on ordinary activitias bafore taxation 5340 852
Income tax charge 4 {159) {25 5)
Profit for the year after taxation 21 431 397
Profit 7 (loss) attributable to equity holders of the company
Owmers of the parent company 437 405
Non-controlling interest {0 8) {08)

431 397

The notes on pages 12 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements

The company has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 to not present the parent company income statement The profit for the parent cornpany
for the year was £14 4m (2011 £36 5m)
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Consolidated and company statements of comprehensive income

For the year andaed 31 Decembaer 2012

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 201

Notes £m £m £m £Em
Profit for the financial year 21 43 1 397 14 4 365
Other comprehensive (expense)} / income
Currency transiation differences 21 (30) [rs] - -
Cash flow hedges 21 01 01 - -
Acoensiton of subsidiary undestaleng 21 - {14 1) - -
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension scheme 17 45) {199) [LX4] (18 1)
Taxation on items taken directly to equity 4 04 44 04 41
Othar comp expense for the year, net of tax (7 0) {32 2) (43) {14 0)
Total comprehensive income for the year 3681 75 101 225
Attibutable to
Owners of the parent company w7 83 101 225
Nor-controlling interest (0 6) {0 B) - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 36 1 75 101 225

The notes on pages 12 to 37 form an mtegra! part of these financial statements
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Consolidated statement of financial position

At 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Notes £m £m £m £fm
Assels
Non-current assets
Goodwill 6 1528 1539
Intangible assets 7 305 284
Property piant and equipment 8 184 0 1774
Deferred income tax assets 19 308 322
3979 3929
Current assets
Inventories 10 121 7
Trade and other recervables 11 B0B7 6704
Cash and cash equivalents 12 1684 1452
8872 9173
Liabilitles
Curvent liabilitles
Financial llabiliffes - borrowings 15 (27 5) (38 1)
Trade and other payables 13 {507 2) {5720)
Gument income tax habilities 14 {0 2) {02)
Prowisions for other kabilities and charges 18 {14) 07)
(536 3) B110)
Net curvent assats 508 306 3
Non-current llabilities
Financial liabiliies - borrowings 15 {179 9) (1697)
R benefit oblig: 17 (83 5) {60 1)
Prowvisions for other kabilites and charges 18 {+13) {114)
{254 7) (241 2)
Het assats 454 1 438 06
Equity
Share capital 20 54 54
Share premium account 308 308
Other reserves 21 (38) on
Retained eamings 21 463 8 429 0
Total equity attributable to owners of the parant company 5012 464 5
Non-controlling interests {71 {6 5)
Total equity 494 1 458 0

The notes on pages 12 to 37 form an integral part of thesa financial stataments

The financial statements on pages 4 to 37 were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 April 2013 and were signed on 113 behalf by

P Wieland
Director
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Brake Bros Limited

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Company statement of financial position

At 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Notes £m £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwall 6 282 282
Intangible assets 7 192 1756
Property plant and equipment 8 1185 123 4
Deferred tax assets 19 264 74
Investments In subsidiaries 9 (a) 188 1 2427
3804 4392
Current assets
Inventories 10 807 486
Trade and other receivables " 4209 5007
Cash and cash equivalenis 12 1249 981
806 5 647 4
Liabilities
Current liabllities
Financial liabilties - borrowings 15 (209) {728}
Trade and other payables 13 {488 5) (536 3}
Prowvisions for cther liabilities and charges 18 14) {07
{490 8) (609 8)
Net current assets 1157 76
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabllives - borrowings 15 (18 3) 9 1)
Retrement benefit obligations 17 387} (36 8)
Provisions for other labililias and charges 18 {7 7) {78)
627) {53 5}
Net asseots 433 4 4233
Equity
Share capital 20 54 54
Share premium account 08 308
COther reserves 21 107 107
Retained eamings 21 s s 378 4
Total equity 4334 4233

The notes on papges 12 to 37 form an Integral part of these financal statements

The financial statements on pages 4 to 37 were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 Apnl 2013 and were signed on its behalf by

P Wietand
Director
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Attnbutable to owners of the parent company

Share premum Retaned Non-controlling Tetal
Share capital account Other reserves eanmings Total nterests equity
Notes £m Em Em £m £m £m £m
Batance at 1 January 2011 54 308 160 404 © 456 2 03 456 5
Comprehensive incoma
Profit / (loss) for the year - - - 405 405 08 97
Other comprehensive (expense) / income
Currency translation differences 21 - - 27 - 27 - 27)
Cash flow hedges b2 . - 01 _ o1 _ 01
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension scheme 17 - - - (199) (199) - (199)
Deferred tax on items taken directly to equity 19 . - - 44 44 - 44
Acquisiion of subsidiary undertaking 21 - - {14 1} - {14 1) - {14 1)
Total other comprehensive expense - - (16 7) (155 {32 2) - (322)
Total comprehensive (expense) / Income - - (16 7) 250 83 {08) 76
Transactions with owners
Non-controling interest on busingss combination - - - - - {60) {6 1)
Total transactions with owners - - - - - (6 0) E0)
Balance at 1 January 2012 54 w08 ©7) 4250 464 5 (6 5) 458 0
Comprehensive income
Profit / {loss}) for the year - - - 437 437 {0 6) 431
Othaer comprehensive (expense) / income
Currency translation differences Fal - - 30) - 30 - {30}
Cash flow hedges 21 - - 01 - o1 - 01
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension scheme 17 - - - 45 {45) - {45)
Defermed tax on items taken directly to equity 19 - - - 04 04 - 04
Total other comprehensive exp - - 29) “1) (] - {710}
Total prehensive (expensa) { i - - 29) 386 367 {0 8) 361
_Balance at 31 December 2012 54 308 {3 6) 468 6 5012 (7 1) 4941

The notes on pages 12 to 37 form an integral pan of these financal statements

Page 8




Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Company statement of changes in equity

Attnbutable to owners of the parent company

Share premium Retained Total
Share capital account Other reserves eamings equity
Notes £m £m £m £m £m
Ball at 1 January 2011 54 308 107 3539 4008
Comprehensive income
Profit - - a5 35
Other comprehensive (expense} / income
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension scheme 17 . - - (18 1) (18 1)
Defi d tax on tems taken directly to equity 19 - - - 41 41
Total other comp 1Sive expense - - - (140} (14 0)
Total p [ - - - 225 225
Balance at 1 January 2012 54 08 107 3r64 4233
Comprehansive income
Profit B - - 144 144
Other comprehensive {axpense) / incormne
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension scheme 17 - - - (47} (S
Deferred tax on items taken directly to equity 19 -~ - - 04 04
Total other compi 1SIVe exp - - - (43) 43)
Total comprehensive income - - - 101 101
Balance at 31 December 2012 54 joa 107 386 5 433 4

The notes on pages 12 {o 37 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 2012

Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 201

Notes £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 22 1216 1261
Analysad as
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items 1456 1377
Exceptional items {24 0) {116
interest paid (88) (4 8)
income tax paid (5 3) (27)
Net cash g d from operating activities 107 5 1186
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (25 9) {26 5)
Purchase of intangible assets (3] 53)
Sale of property plant and equipment 157 13
Sale and leaseback of property plant and equipment 81 -
Acquisibon of subsidianes net of cash acguired - (7 6)
Interest received 09 03
Net cash used in investing activities (10 9) (37 8)
Cash flows used in financing activities
Payments to parent undertakings {22 8) (27 3)
Transachon costs ansing on obtaining debt finance {19) [4K:}]
Loan repayments to parent undertakings (3040) -
Proceeds from bamowings N 162
Repayment of extemal borrowings {7 6) 26)
Finance lease capital repay It (10 6} k]
Net cash used in financing activities (72 9) {22 1)
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents 237 587
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 12 1462 874
Effects of exchange rate changes {0 5) (09
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 12 168 4 145 2

The notes on pages 12 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Company statement of cash flows

Far the year endad 31 December 2012

2012 2011

Notes £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 22 769 938
Anatysed as
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items 963 104 4
Exceptional items {19 4} {10 6)
Interest paid {22) {2 6)
Net cash generated from operating activities 747 912
Cash flows from investing activities
Dwvidends recewed 83 95
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {17 5) {(i57)
Purchase of intangible assets 71 (33)
Sale of property plant and equipment and intangible assets 155 1t
Sale and leaseback of property, plant and equipment 81 -
Acquisition of subsidianes - (17 6)
interest received 01 01
Net cash from / {used) in investing activities 54 259
Cash flows fram financing &ctivities
Payments to parent undertakings (7 9) (26 4)
Payments {to) / from group underialuing {15 1) 34
Loans to parent undertakings {30 0) (0 8)
Loans payments from / (to) group undertakings 65 (01)
Finance lease capial repayments (6 8) (58)
Net cash used in financing activities (53 3) 297)
Nat increase in cash and cash equivalents 12 268 356
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 281 §25
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 12 124 9 98 1

The notes on pages 12 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financlal statamants
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Notes to the financial statements
1 Accounting policies
Basis of preparation

These financial ara the cor fi ial statements of Brake Broa Limited ( the Group”) and the parent company financial statements of Brake Bros Limited ("the
Company”} for the year anded 31 December 2012 Thesa group cor and y financial ware authonsad for issus by tha Board of Directors on 12 Apnl 2013

These Lidated financial st s have been prepared in dance with Ir | R ] dards as ptad by the pean Union (IFRSs as adopted by
the EU) IFRIC Interpretations and the Companies Ad 2006 applcabl toaompmnsmpomgumrlFRS ansdndahdfnanaalsmtmmhawbommamdmdﬁrm

b rical cost conv: ¥ as modified by the h of land and bulkdings and finanaal assets and finzncial liabilites (inctuding derdvative instruments) a1 far vatue through profit or

The preparation of consclidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain cntical accounting estrates it also requinss management to exerciss its
judgement in the process of applying tha Group s accounting polices  The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant ta the consolidated financial statemants are disciosed below within cntical accounting estimates and assumphons

The Cempany 15 part of a financing group of companies ard tharefors the going concem of the Company 13 dependent upon the averall gong concam of the Group  In assessing
whether tha financial statemants for the Company should ba prepared on the going concem basis the dimetors have therefona considered the future outiook of the Company and of the
Group on a combined basis A fuller analysis of this outicok gnd the Basis for this assessment (s set out in the financral statements of the largest UK parsnt company Cistina Lux
Investments Limited Hawving cor the future g profits cash fiows and fachhes available to the Group the Directors ere satisfied that the Group will have sufficent funds
to repay its iabilibes as they fall due  On this basis the Directons ¢ it jate to prepare the finzncial statements on the going concem basis

{a) New and amended standards sdopted by the Group
There are no iIFRSs or IFRIC intarpratations thal are effectiva for tha first bme for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2012 that would be expected to have a material
Impact on the Group

{t) New dards ard mtem not yet By the Group
A number of new standards and emendments to standards and interpretations are sffective for annuel penods baginmng afm: 1 January 2012 and have not been applied in prepanng
these consolidated financial statements Nons of these s expected to have a sigruficant effect on tha s of the group except tha following sat out below

Amendment to IAS 1 Financal statement presantaton regarding other comprehensive mcome The mamn change resulting from these amendments i3 8 resquirement for sntites 1o
Qroup items presentad in cther comprahenswve income {OCH on the basis of whether they are petentially rectassifiable to profit or loss subseq by (rectassifi 1 adjL 3y The
amendments do not address which items are presented in OC|

IFRS 13 Far value nent' aims to impi consl and reducs complexty by providing & precise definition of fair value and & single source of tarr valus measurement and
disclosurs requiremsnts for use across IFRSs The requinemants which are largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP do not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide
guidancs on how it should be appiied where its uss is aieady required or permitted by other standands within IFRSs or US GAAP

IAS 18 Employes benefits was amended in Juns 2011 The impact on the Group will be as follows o reverse the reserve held for future adrmun:stration sxpenses and to recogniss
them within operating costs as incurred and to replace nterest cost and expectad retum on plan assets with & net witerest amount that is cakulated by applying the discount rate o the
net dafined benefit hability For 2012 the impact to the Group of the amendments would have been an increass in net finance costs amounting tov €0 8m & reduction of £1 2m n the
actuanal loss i the consolidated statement of comprehensive income the admistraton expenses reserve raversal would reduce the present valua of funded obligations from
£183 8m to £188 Om and the operating profit would be lower dus to £0 2m of administration expense chargas

IFRS 9 Financial instrumants’ the and re tion of assets and fi | bl IFRS 9 was 1ssued n November 2009 and October
2010 I replaces the parts of IAS 25 that relats to the dawﬂmon and measurament of financal nstruments IFRS & requires financial assets to be classifiad nito two measurement
categones thosa measured as at fau value and those measured at 2amorised cost. The determination 13 mads at nial recognibon  The classification dapends on the entity's business
model for managing its financial mstruments and the contractual cash Now charactenstics of the instrument. For financal liabiibas the standard retains most of the [AS 35 mequiements
The main change i3 that, in cases where the fair valus opbon Is taken for financal habdtes the part of a fair value change dus to an entty's own credit risk is recorded In other
comprehensive income rather than the consclidated income statement, unlass this creates an accountng mismatch The Group s yat to assess IFRS 98 full unpact and intends to
adopt IFRS 9 no tater than the accounting pencd beginning on or aftar 1 January 2015 subject to endorsement by the EU The Group will also consider tha impact of the remaining
phases of IFRS 8 when completed by the Board

IFRS 10 Consolidated financial stat s builds on g F pies by identfying the concapt of control as the datermining factor in whather an antity should ba included withun the
1 financal of the parent company The standard provides addibonal guidancs to axsist in the determunation of control whers this 1s difficult to assass The Group
15 yet to assess [FRS 10s full impact and intands to adopt IFRS 10 no later than the accountny period beginming on or after 1 January 2013

IFRS 12 Drsclosures of interests in other enttes incudes the disclosure requirernents foc all forms of interests i other enthes including Jonl arangements associates specal
purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vahicles The Group is yet to assess IFRS 12 s full impact and intends 1o adopt IFRS 12 no later than the accounting penod beginnmg an
or after 1 January 2013

Thare ase no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yat effective that would be expacted to have a matenal rnpact on the Group
Signiticant accounﬂnu policies

The Group 8 pnncip g policies adoptad in the prep. 0 of these financial stataments are set out baiow These policies have besn consistentdy appled to all
the years pmsanmd unless cthermse stated

Basis of consclidation

(o) Subsdaras

Thase lidated financial lidate the financal of the C y and all its y undertakings Subsidianes inciuds special purpose entties whers
the substance of the relationship between the Group and the special purpose antty indicatss that it [s controliad by the Group Subsidianes are all entties (Including special purpose
entties) over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies generalty accompanying a shareholding of morg than one half of the voung nghts The
existence and stfact of potential voung nghts that ars currently exercisable or convertible are considered when g whather tha Group ther entity Subsidiaries are
fully consalidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group  They ans de-consolidated from tha date that control ceases

The Group uses the acquisition mathod of accounting to t for b b £ Thew id transtermed {or the acquisibon of a subsidiary 1s the far vahie of the
assets fransterrad tholiabnhhnmmrmdandmonqu:rymnstslsmodbymcmp The Son trar inch the far value of &y asasts of Eabdity anung from a
contngent consideration arangement. Acquisiton-related costs are expensed as incumed Identfiable assets acqured and Babdties and contingent liabiit dunab
combnabon are measured inally at their fair vatues at the acquisiion date  On an acquisiton-by-acquisition basis the Group recognisas any non-controlling interast in the acquires
either at far value or at the non-controling interest's proportionate shere of the acquirae’s net assats

The excess of the consideration transfermed the amount of any non-controling interest in the acquires and the scquisiion-cate far value of any previous equity interest in the acquires
over the far value of the Group s share of the identfiable net assets acq Is recorded as goodwill If this is lass than the fair value of the net assats of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase the differanca is recognised dwectly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For transactons with entibes undeér common contral the availabls axamphon from IFRSS‘Busm“Oombinaﬂons Istakm-nd the predecessor method of accounting ts used Tba
identifiable assets and liabiites are measured at thewr pre-combinabon camying value nch 9 any prevh [ il any adff on ¢ (ot

cost of investment and the camying value of the net assets) are recognised i1 equity in netained TheGmup unn:muotmaacqwndmuwmmdamonwhim
the business combination between enttes under common tentrol occumed

Uniform accounting policies are adopted across the Group Inter-company transactons balancas and unrealised gans on transactions between Group companies are akminated
Unreslised losses are also sliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred
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" licias fenntinuad!
1A Q P l§ )

Basis of consolidation (conunu-d)

(B} Ts trons and non- firg interosts

The Group applias a policy of tnnung transactions with minonty interests as transactions with parias axtemal to the Group Disposals to minonty interests result in gains or losses for
the Group that are recorded i the income statement. Purchases from minonty interests result In goodwill being the difference betwaen any considerabon paid and tha relevant share
acquined of the camying value of net assets of the subsidary

The Group treats transactions with non-controling interests as transactions with squity owners of the Group  For purchases from non-controlling intsrests the difference between any
consderaton pad and the relevant share acquired of the camying value of net assets of the subs:diary s recorded 11 equity  Gains or losses on disposals o non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity

When the Group ceasss to have control or significant influence any retained intarest in the entity 1s remasured 1o its fair value with the change in carmying amount recognised in the

income The fair valus is the inthal carrying amount for the purp of 19 for the retained «ntarest in the assocate ot ventura or
financial asset. in additon myarmumsprwbuiymmgmadmoﬂnrcommhmswamm mspouofmalenmymau:omtpd for as |ltheGmuphad directty disposed of the
retated assets or labdibes This may mean that pediously n othar income are fied to the lidated income 1t

P

If the ownership In an associate is reduced bul significant influencs 15 ret d only a prop share of the amounts praviously recognised in other comprehensive iIncome an
jassified to the d ncome where

{¢) Associatas
Associates are zll enlities over which the Group has significant influence but not control generally accompanying a sharehoiding of batwean 20% and 50% of the voting rights
Ir its are d for using the equity method of accouniing and are intally mcogrused at cost.

The Groups share of ita assocates post soquisibon profits or lossas 1 g d In the cor mcome and s share of post acquisition movements in other

1sive incoma Is gnised in cther comprehensive incoma The cumulative post acquisiion movemeants are adjusted aganst the campng amount of the Investment When
the Group s share of losses in an associats equals or exceeds its interast in the associate the Group doas not recognise further losses unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments an behalf of the assocate

Unrealised gains on tmnsactmn: between the Geoup and its assoclates are sliminated to the extent of tha Group s interest in the asscciate  Unrealised losses are also elminated
unless the L] of anmpaiment of the asset ransferred Accounting poliies of associates have been changed where necsssary (o ensura consistency with
the accounting polma adopted by the Group

Reovenus

Revenue compnses the fair valus of the consideration recaived or recervable for the sala ol products and services including ancillary revenues nat of value added tax rebates and
discounts and after skminatng sales within the Group

Revenue i3 recognised when the Group has delivered the products or servica has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownershup and when it 1s considered
probable that the related bie 13 coll ble R and discounts are recogrised when ths Group has deliverad the products and sarvicas and whan it 18 considared probable
that the obligation 15 recervable or payable respechvely

Exceptional tems

Where iteams of income and expense included in the hdated income st are cor to ba matenal and in nature te disclosura of thew nature and
amount 18 provided in the financial statements These items are classified as exceptonal tems The Group considers the size and nature of an item both nddually and when
aggregated with simifar tems when considaring whether it 13 material

Property, plant and equipment
Proparly plant and equ:p 18 shown at historical cost less subsequent depreciation and impaiment,

Cost reprasants mvoiced cost plus any other costs that are dirsctly attibutabte 1o the soquisiton of the tem The Group capitalises borowing costs directly attnbutable to the
acquisiton censiruction or preduction of a qualitying asset as par of the cost of that asset The Group charges borrowing costs to the ¢onsolidated income statemant for non-qualifying

Subsequent costs ere included in the asset’s camying amount of recognised as a sep 23301, 88 D only when it 13 probable that future ammmn: benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group nd the cost of the tem can be reliably measured All other repairs and mamtsnance are charged to the consolidated ncome dunng the
financial pariod in which they are incurred

Mo depreciation 1s provided on freehokd land

Depreciation s provided on all other propsrty plant and equipment te wita down their cost of where therr useful econoemic lives have been rewsed ther camying amount at the date of
revision o their estimated residual values on a straight line basis over the penods of their estmated or revised, remaining usetul economic lives raspectivaly Thesa lves are
considerad to be

Fraehold buldings between 17 and 40 years

Leasahold buildings tha paried of the leasa or 40 years whichever is the shorter
Motor vehucies batween 5 and 10 years

Ptant and equipment batween 3 and 40 years

tr i hrigtegy handh batween 3 and 5 ysars

Asset lives and residual vafues are reviewsd each financial year

An assel s camying amount 1s wnttan down immed:ately to its recoveratie amount If the asset s camying amount 18 greatar than its estimated recoverable amount

Profits and losses on disposals arg deterrm:ned by comparing the proceads with tha camying and are d within the consotidated income statement

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries hald as nen-curent assets ara accounted for at cost fess a provision for any impaument in vaiue Cost i3 adjusted 0 reflact changes in consideration ansing
from contingent considerabon amendments Cost also includes direct atinbutable costs of i s I the ok ider that fair value of nvestments in subsidiaries are below
thewr camrying vaiue then a provision for impaimant would ba mads

Intangible asssats

{a) Goodwill

Goodwill represants the excass of the cast of an acquesibon over the far value of the Group s share of the net identfiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisiton
Goodwill on acquisibons of subsidiaries is induded in ‘intangible assats’ Goodwill 1s not subject to annual amortisation but is instead tasted annually for mmpairment and camed at cost
less accumulated impainment losses Impairment osses on goodwill are not revarsad

Goodwill is afiocated to cash generating units for the purpose of imparment testng The aflocabon 13 mads {0 those cash-generating units that are expectsd to benafit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose
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1A ting policies (continued)

f Ible assets ( A
{bjCormu\'orsaMw

are a:mmw:uomwunbamdmmmmmwbﬂmmwuumspocrﬁcsommm Dwrectly attnbutable
msu cizte d with the P of sofy that are expactsd to g Tuture d as part of puter softwars
Whare softy costs are d they are d using the straighi-ine basis to wnte tham down to ther ashmated realisable vatue over they estrnated useful econormuc lives

which are considerad to be batween three and five years

Tha residual valus and usefu! lifa are d and adjusted if riate at aach statament of finanaal posiion date

{c) Customer contracts and relatronships
Customer lists and customer contracts and relationships gre acquired separately or as part of a business combinaton

For thosa customer lists and customer or relath gible asset is g on the basls of the costs to acquire the customer lists and
customer contracts and relabonships together with any dlmcﬂy annbutable eosu of nequnﬂng the asset
Feor thase customer lists and and rel hip q as pant of a busi b the far vahue of the asset is recogrused at the date of the acguisiion In

accordance with IFRS 3 (revised)

Customer lists and customer contracts and relationships are amortised on a straght line basis over their expected useful economuc lives which are considered tc be batwean 3 and §
years Thesa ane assumed to have no residual value at the end of their expectad useful economic hfe

(d) Branda
Brands are acquired separately or as part of a business combination For those brands acquired separately &n intangible assat is g d on the basis of the costs to acguire the

brands togethar with any diractly attnbutable costs of acqunng the asset For those brends acquired as part of a business combination the far vaiue of the assat is recognised at the
data of the acquisition in accordance with IFRS 3 (revised)

Brands are amostused on a strarght ine baxy over their expected useful economic lives which are considered to be 25 years Thess are assumed 1o have no rexdual values at the end
of their expaciad useful ecanomic iife

Impairment of nonfinancial assets

Asssts that have an indefinie usafl economic ke are not subject to amorhsation and ere testad annually for ympatmment  Asssts that are subject 0 amorbsabon are reviewed for
impauent whenaver avents or changes in arcumstances indicate that the camying amount may not be recoverable An loss I1s for the amount by which the
asset's camying wmount exceeds iis recoverable amount. The recoverable amount I1s the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value mn use For the purposes of
assessing imparment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identfiable cash flows (cash-generating units)

Inventories

Inventories are statad at the lower of cost and net realisable value Prowvision 13 made for obsclete and slow-moving dams  Cost compnses direct purchase costs and overheads that
have been incurred in bringing the invantones to therr present locabon and condition Direct purchase cost is calculated on a weighted average cost basis Nt realisable value
reprasents the estimated seling pnce less all estimated costs of compiation and costs to be incummed n markeung sellng and distnbution

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised mitally at farr valus and subsequently measured at amorlised cost less provision for Irnpa:mnnl. A prowvision for impaiment 15 astablished when thera
is Objactive evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts dua according to the onginal tsmms of r i difficuthes of the debtor probabiity

that the debtor will anter bankrupticy or financal reorgarusabon and defsutt or delinquency in payments (more than 2 momhs overdug) are considerad indicators ihat the trade
recevable 13 unpaired  The ameunt of the provision 18 the diference between the assa's camyng emeunt and the presant value of astmated future cash flows discounted at the

on\gmll cfrmve interest rate  The camying amount of the assat is reduced through tha use of a trade bl and the arnount of the loss s r.ooqmsod In me
or < Income withun direct purchass cost. When a trade recervable 13 uncollectable it 13 wntten off against the trade account b
of ts pr y wnitten off are n the incoma

Trade recelvables - factored
Vvhere tha Company has sold without recourse trada receivablas to other group companiea and no longer bears the nsk or of these ts the trade r 13
derecognised on the related sale

Cash and cash equivalenty
Gash and cash equivalents compnsa cash at bank (being the cash book balanca) and w1 hand short term deposits and cther short term highly liqud 1ts with original
of three months or less held for the purpose of meeting short term cash Bank are p in current llabilites to the extent that there 18 no right of offset with

cash balances

Current and defarmed income tax

The current income tax charge is calcutated on the basis of the tax laws snacted or substantively enacted at the date of the of fi | M cically
avaluates posihons taken in tax returns with respact to situabons in which apphcable tax reguiaton IS subject to interprataton and estabiishes prmnyoﬂs where apptr.\pﬁm on the baszs
of amounts expeciad to be pad to the tax authoritias.

Deferrad incoms Lax I8 provided i full using the lability method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax base of assets and fabihties and thes camying amounts in the
financial statemants However, tha defermed income tax is not accounted for f it anses from bl recognition of an asset or labidity in a transackon other than a businass combination
that at the time of the transaction affects nether accountng nor taxable profit or loss Defemed income tax 1s detenmined using lax rates (and laws) that have basn enacted or
substanbally enacted by the date of the statement of financial posiion and are expectsd to apply whan the related daferred incoma tax asset (s realised Detemmed income tax is
measured on an undiscounted basis

Daferred tax as5ais ane racogrused o the axtant that i is probabis that taxable profits will Be available aganst which the temporary differances can be utiised

Employes benefits

Defined benefit penxion plan

The Group operates a defined benefit funded pension scheme covenng 8 number of its employees Tha scheme i3 a contrected out defined benefit scheme providing final salary
related benefits accrued for each ysar of sarvica The scheme was made fully paid up at 31 December 2003 and no further benefits am accnnng to mermbers subsequant to this date

The charge in the consolidated income statement in mspect of the defined benefit pansion schema compnses the interast charge on p labik offset by the expected retum on
pansion scheme assats and 13 recognised in interest payable and sumilar chargas and intarast recstvable respecively

The llability ised in tha of n respect of the defined benefit pension scheme 18 the presant value of the defined benefit obligation at the date of the
staternent of financial posiion less the fair value of the plan assets The indepsndent actuary using the projected unit credit mathod and assumptions agreed with the Trustees and
Diraciors calculates the defined benefit 1 The p value of the defined benefit obiigation 18 by d ing the ast d future cash flows using
interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that have {ems to mammy apprumating W the ierms of the related penson kablity

Actuaral gains and losses anse from sxperienca sdjustments (the effects of actuarial 1% and what has gy d) and ch n
actuarial assumptons  Actianal gains end lassas are recogrused in full i the year they ocour hmextammolwnptmsmhmnn
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1A #ing policies feomtinued)
Defined contribuation pian

For dafined contnbuton plans the Group pays conml:umens to erp money purchase pension plans on a contractual basis  The Group has no further payment obligations once the
coninbutions have been pard  The d a3 an employse benafit axpensa when they are dus

Provisions

Provimons are formed for legally enf or constructh on the date of the statement of financial positen the satfiement of which is likely to require outflow of
resources and the extent of wiuch can be reliably estimated Where material 1o the financial statements prowisions are discounted over the life of the:r expected cash flows

Trade payabies

Trade payzbles are non interest-beanng and are stated at amortised cost.

Leasss

Leases in which & sigrificant portion of the risks and rds of hip are transf to the Group are classified as finance leases

Asgsets acquined under finance leases are included in the statement of financial position as property plant and equipment and ane depraciated aver the shorter of thesr usaful lives and
the lsase tem  Tha capial element of futura rantals is treated as a labilty Rentals are apportioned between reductions of the respective lablihes and finance charges which are
deatt with undar finance costs in the ¢ ncoms

Rentals paid under operating Ieases (those lsases where a significant portion of the risks and rewands of ownership are retained by the lessor) are eharged to the consolidated incoms
statement over the fem of the lease

Foreign curmencies
ltems ncluded in the finanaal statements of the Group 8 subskitary comparies are measured usmg the currency of the pnmary @CONOMIC environment In wiich the subsidiary operates
(‘the funcbonal currency’} The consobdated financial statements are prasanted in stering which 1s the Group and Company's functional and presentational currency

Foreign currency ara J Into the

y using the axchange rates pravailing at tha dates of the transactions

Monstary assets and liabiites denominated in forsign tumences are transiated into the relevant functional currsney at the rates of exchange ruling at the date of the statament of
financial position  Differences ansing on transiation are charged or credited to the consohdated income statamant axcept when defemed in equity as quahfying cash flow hedges or
quahfying nat investmant hadges

The incoma of foragn ¥ companies are transiated ito stering at monthly average exchangs ratas and the of financial p ane transiatad at the
exchange rates ruling at the date of the stataments of financial posibon  On consohdaton exchange differences arising from the transiaton of the net investment in foreign
E]) iaries and of bor Q! ns hedgas of such investments ere taken to shareholders aquity Thess exchange differences are disclosed as a separate component of

shareholders aquity within other reserves

Goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on the acquisiton of a foregn entity are treated as assets and llabiities of tha foreign entity and transiatsd at the closing rate

Financlal assats
The Group damflou its financial assets in the !olluwing categery loans andg vabl The classification 1s basad on the pumpose for which the financial assets were acquired
Manag b a8 the classifi of s fi | assets at ivtial recognition

Loans and receivables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determnable payments that are not quoted in an actrve market. They ere included in cument assets except for
matuntiss graater than 12 months after the date of tha 1t of fi ! These are classified as non-currant assats The Group s keans and receivablas comprise trade
and other recaivables and cash and cash aquivalents in the statement of /i nandal posibon

Borrowings and finance costs
Borowangs are recognissd t:tially at fair valus baing the issue p nat of any costs |

Borrowings ars subssquently measurad at amorthsed cost using the affactve wntarest mathod Amortised cost is adjustad for the amortisation of any transacbon costs The amortisation
18 recognised in finance costs  Transaction costs are amorbsed over the expacted term of the related financial instrurments

All borrowings denominated in currencias other than stering are transiated at the rate rukng at tha L of date

Borrowings are classified as current llabiiies unless the Group has an unconciional nght to defer settiernent of the lizbility for 8t [east twalve months a’ter the statement of financial
posibon date

Finance [ncome
Finance ncome is recognised on a tme-proporbon bagis using the effectve nterest mathod

Darivative financial instruments
The Group uses darivative financial instruments principally interast rate swaps to manage the interest rate nsk on interest paymants The Group does not use denvative financal
WsiTLments for speculalive purposes

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on tha date a denvatve contract is sntsred into and subaeq ly re-maasurad at far valus  The method of recegniaing the resulting
gain or loss depends on whether the derivative Is designated as a hedging instrument and if so the nature of the item baing g The Group ¢ certain d ives s

hadges of & particular nsk associated with a recogrused asset or kability or a highly probable forecasted transaction (cash flow hedge}

The Group documents at or near 1o the incephon of the transacton the relationship b hedging i and hadagaed rems as well a3 its risk managament objectives and
strategy for undertaking vanous hedging tansactons  The Group alsc documents its assessment, both a1 hadgs incaption and on an ongoing basis of whether the denvatrves that are
used in hadging transactons ara highly effectve in offseting changas i cash flows of hedged temns

Tha far value of denvative instruments usad lor hadgng purposes are disclosed 1 nots 18 {c)  Movements on the hedging mserve in sharsholders equity are shown in note 21 The
full fasr valus of & hedging denvative 1s classified as a non-curment asset or liabilty when the remaning matunty of the hedged itam 13 more than one year and as a curmenl asset or
Iability whan the remaining matunty of the hedged item 18 less than ona year

{a) Cash fiow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair valus of d that are end qualify as cash flow hedges s recognisad in aquity (in othar reserves in nots 21) Tha gain or
loss nelating 1o the ineffective porton s diately in finance cosis net in the consclidated income statement.

Amounts accumutated in equity are recycled in the consolidated income statement in the pencds when the hedged itern affects profit or loss  The gain or loss relatng to the effectve
porumofmannrnmmsm;mvmmmm:wmhmmmmmummmu net  The gan or ioss relating to the ineffective
portion of intenest mte swaps hedgung variable rate borrewings 13 recognised in the d mcome within 'finance costs - net

‘When a hedging instrument expires or 13 sold or where a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting any cumulative gan or koss existing i equity at that tme remains in
aquity and is recog: o when the f ir 18 y racognised in the consolidated income statement Whan a foracast transaction is no longer expacted to occur the
cumuiative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transf to the ncome within 'flinance cosis - net'
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Share capital

Whers the Company [3sues sharas of other financial mstruments these financlal instruments ars ctassified as a financsal labiity financial assst or squity according to the substance of
the contractual amar or s parts | costs directly atinbutable 10 the issue of new shzres are shown in the same respective catsgory to which the costs
relate  Dividends or interest arising on such financial mstruments are recognised according 1o the ctassificaton of the financal instrument.

Critica? o and

@ Esth g imp ofg "

The Group tests annually whather goodwall has suffered any impaimment, in accordances with the accountng policy stated abovs The recoverable amounts of cash-generating urids
have been detemuned based on value-n-use caludations These caiculatons require the usa of esbmates (see note 6)

A senuitnty analysis hes been performed on the key assumpbons used for assassing the goodwll The direciors have concludsed that in the case of Broadine UK, Broadiine
Continental Europe Country Choce and M&J Seafood that as these have signdicant haadroom of recoverabla emounts in excass of carrying values it |3 conssderad that thare ara thars
are no reasonably possible changes in key assumpbons which would cause the camyng amount of goodwill to exceed its value-in-use

(8} Empicyee benefits - defined pension oblgation

Foliowing the amendment to IAS 19 Employes Benefits issued in December 2004 the Group has edopted an eccountmg policy whereby actusrtal gains and losses for the UK defined
benefit penmon scheme am taken through the statement of comprehensive incoma In full each year and the full deficit on an IAS 18 basis is Included withun the of fi 1
position

The defined beneafit pansion obligation has bean calculated by the scheme actuary for each reporting data using the projected unit credit method end assumptons agreed with the
Group (ses note 17 to tha financial statements)

One of the key assumptans used in determining the valuzion at 31 December 2012 1 tha UK discount rate of 4 79%  VWhilst the directors that the adoption of a 4 7% di

rata 13 appropriate «f the rate used had baen O 2% higher or lower the returemant benefit obligation would have been approximately £7 1m lower or higher  Ancther kay assumplon used
in detgrmining the valuaton s the morteiity assumpbon  If the average Iife expectancy in years of pensioner reuring was 1 year higher or lower than that used in the valuaton tha
ratirement benafit obligation would have bean approximately £4 8m higher or lewar

fe) i taxes - taxal

The group is subyect 0 income taxes In ruMeOUS d S fi dg 13 requued in determirung the group s provision for defemed taxaton There are certain
calcutations for which the ulimate tax detarminaben 15 uncertain  The gmup rloognues liabilites and assets tor anticipated tax issues based on astmates of whether additonal taxes
will be dus or recoverable Where the final outcome of these matters is ditfarent from the amounts that were inibally recorded such diferances will impact the current and delerred
Income tax assats and habilities in the perod in which such determinaton is mads

A daferred tax asset of £5 4m 15 recogrused in respect of certam UK tax losses  The key assumpbion used in recogniben of this asset 15 based upon management's foracasts for taxable
profits for the next three yeers and the assumption that the losses will be avalable for utilsaton  If managemant's forecasts were 10% higher of lowar then the deferred tax assal would
be £0 5m higher or lower and incoms taxes in the consolidated ncome statement would ba £0 5m lower or hgher respectively  If the tax [osses were subsequantly found not to be
available for utiisation against taxable profits then the defersd tax asset would ne longer be recognised and there would be a charga of £5 4m In income taxas i the consolidatad
Ncome staterrant
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Brake Bros Limited

Annual report and financial statements
For the year snded 31 December 2012
Notes to the financlal statements

2 Revence and sperating profit

2 2011
£m £m
Revenus  products 28977 24408
Direct purchase cosi {2,217 1) (1,848 5)
Trading profit 5806 8013
Distribution and zalling oosts _{508 8) 441 8
Gross profit 1748 1505
Adminisirsthee axpensas (T8 5) 82
Exceptional 8ms (sas beiow) (227) (189
Amoxtisation of assats lists 1.9 13
Amostisation of inlangible assats  computer software {71} (59
Total administrotive sxpenses o ) 92 0]
Group eperating profit 67 1 8715
The Group’s revenus primarity comprises ¢f Sles lo customers within the Unred Kinpdom (Inch the Reps of treland) g to £1 955 2m (2011 £1 801 Sem) and within Continerts) Europe
emouning 1o E342 5m [2011 £843 3m)
The Group operating prafit is all derived from continuing operations
w012 201
Profit on ordinary activities befors taxation is amtved st afer charging £m £m
Employse benefit expanse (note 23) hd 309 W3
nventornes
cost of | ol as en gl in direct cast) 22073 18408
witte downa and losses incumred in the yoar 413 70
Amaotisation of intangible assets - brands and and U I 14 13
of gible assets . pa T1 59
Depreciation of property plant and equipment
- owmed assels 241 211
- assets held under finznce leases 1023 59
Less on sale of property plant and squipment 187 02
Other operating leass rentals payable
plani end machinery 148 154
prepeny 1% 128
Repairs and malntanance experdituig of property plant and squipment 288 242
Trade receivables impairment (note 11) 48 42
Excsptional items
Business change costs 54 Qs
- G of the UK network 67 12
- Other UK restructuring costs and other costs 1 25
Bruke France Service SAS restructuring costs [ 1] g2
Menigo Foodservice AB restnscturing cosis 18
Tranaaction fees 19 a4
- Loss on disposal of Browns Foodservice 11 -
Impaimment of goodwill / brands and custamer contracts and relationships - 3s
Total lonal ttems 227 188
Busmasy change costy
Significam business change costs amounting to £8 4m (2011 £10 5m) have been incumed during the year primarily on extemal ¥ projects E change and

operationsl nestruciure across the group

Restructuring of the UK disiribution netwerk

Restructuring has taken place in the UK in ordar to redevelop the distsibution network snd infrastructure with costs in the ysar amounting to £8 7m (2011 £1 2m) During the Implementation of this
restruciure 8 large number of one-off costs am being incurmed and a dedicated leam of Brakes emplayees have been raciuited to manage the project  The restructuring costs mcumed grimarily refated
to project manegement costs the closurs of depots and ihe resiruciuring cosis relals to redundancy payments and other sxceptional operating costs incurred during the period prior to closure and aiso
costs In retation to stan up and dual running costs when opening and clesing depots  During 2012 a new depot in Reading was opened and 3 depots wers clossd  Also in 2012 a daclsion has been
mads to buikl a new distribution cantre in Wanrington with completion in 2013 The costs Incumred in 2011 primarily relatad 1o the developenent of & rew depot In Reading

Other LUK restructuring and other costs
Other UK restrotturing costs of £2 1m (2011 E2 5m) primanly inCiudé redundancy ©osts Incurred from a Ui b cLacth In respect of redundancy cost where stalf have been
notified of their redundancy during the year a full accrual i made for ther costs from the date of notfication and ihese costs kre classibed as exceptional tems

Brake Frence Service SAS restructring costs
Brake Franca Servica SAS incumed restructuring costs of £0 9m (2011 £0 2m) ln retation to roles p trom the during the year

Menigo Foadservice AR rostructuring costs
Menige Foodsensice AB incumed restructuring costs of £1 8mi In refation 10 roles penmanently remaved from ibe business during (he year

Transaciion costs

Transaction cosis am for professional end legal fees Incured by advisors acing on behaif of the Group In 2012 costs amounting to £1 8m (2011 £0 4m) were incumed  inciuding lransaction fess
involced lor prior years J fees for and and siso fees incumed m jal market opp During 2011 the
costs | wers from sl markel

Loss on disposal of Browns Foodservice
Foliowing & thorsugh review of the Browns Foodservics operation it was decided during the year to sell ihe business resulting In a loss on disposal of £1 Im
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Brake Bros Limited
Annuai report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Notes to the financial statements

2 and op profit H
Auditors
During 1he year the Group (including ts txsidlares) ciiained the following servicas from the Group s audiors and it associatas at the following costs

Fees payabie to the Company's auddor and i3 associstes for the sudd of the parent

audiior and Its associates for other services are detailed as Tolkows.

financial

16 £0 2m (2011 £0 4m) Feas payable to the Company's

2012 201

Oher services £m Em
The audil of the compary's parent and subsitiary underlakings 03 g3
Tax compilance service 02 Q2
Cther non-audd services o1 o1
[N ] 08

The Group's auddcrs siso acted a3 auditons to the Erake Bros pic Pensicn Schema and the Brakes Money Purchase Pension Plan  The appointment of auditors 10 thess schemes and the fees paid aro

agreed by the Trustses of 8ach scheme who act to tha

3 Finance costs - net

of the Group Tha aggregets fees charged were £22 500 (2011 £28 750)

w12 2011
£m £m
Finance costs
Bark loans sn @8
Other loans and charges (10} {10)
Amonisation cf Gebth issus costs L]
Financa lsases a9 an
Foregn grins on q activit w4
Loan from paren undertaking (L] on
interest on pension schexne liabilities (note 17) N 98y
Total financs costs {202) {18 0
Financa Incoma
Imterest Income on short term deposis 05 01
Other interest income 04 0z
Foreign gdins on A civit - 02
Loans to parent undertakings 3 25
Expecied retum on pension scheme assets 42 1]
Total fingnce itcoms 121 128
Finance costs - net {8 1) 33
4 {ncomas tax charge
Taxathon is basod on the profit for the year and comprises 2012 2011
Em £m
Current tax
- Current year group rebef L1} 1549
- Adjustmants in respect of previous years 10 18
- Overseas taxation 84 40
Deferred Laxation
~ onigination and reversal of temporary differences 50 29
frnpact of change in LK tax rate 18 14
Adjustments ta deferred tax In respect of pravious years 53 10
+ overseas defsired Laxation 0.4 45
income tax charge 5% 2585
Anslysis of tax on ltems credited to squity
2H2 2011
£m Em
Cefered tax cradit on retirement benefit obligation sctuarial lossas (ses note 19) L} 47
Oversaas taxation oa reurement benefit obligation sctuarial losses - 03
04 44
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Brake Bros Limited

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012
Notes to tha financial statements

4 Intoma tax tharge {continusd}

A reconciliation of the Lax charge for ihe year ¢ the rate of Corporation tax s summarisad bekrw
2012 2011
£m Em
Profil on ordinary acirvitias before tax 590 852
Al 24 5% (2011 26 5%) 145 173
Effects of
Adjustmentis to tax charge in respect of previous year 30 168
Tax losses not giving rise to cuiment year retiel 15 04
Overseas taxation 14
Adjusimenis to deferred taxation In respect of previous years {53 10
Re-measurement of deferred tax - Change in the UK tax rate 18 14
Expenses not deductible for lax purposes and other adjustments 04 24
Tax charge 158 255
The standard rate of corporation lax In the UK reduced from 26% Lo 24% with sffect fram 1 April 2012 and gty the s profits for the lal year were laxed &t an effective rate of

24 5%

During the year as a rasult ¢f the change in the UK corporation tax saté from 24% to 23% thal was substanirvely enscied on 3 July 2012 and s effeciive from 1 April 2013 the relevani delared tax
have been d  Deferred tax axpected 10 raverse i the year lo 31 Dacember 2013 has been measured using the effective rate that will apply in the UK for Lhe year (23 25%)

Funther K 1o the UK tax rate were in the O 2012 Autumn St and the Masch 2013 Budget Further reductions to Lhe main rate are proposed (0 reduce the
rate by a further 3% to 21% from 1 April 2014 and 15 20% from 1 April 2015 Thesa changes In the comporstion tax rate from 23% to 20% had nol been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
and are not g N In thess 1l ial

& Prafit of tha Pamnt Campany foc the flnancial year

The company has taken advaniags of section 408 of e Companies Acl 2606 and consequertly has not presented an income sistement The company’s profit for the financial year ameunted o
£14 4m (2011 E26 5m)

& Goodwill
Group Company
£m £m
Cost and net book valus
At 1 January 2012 16539 282
Exchange ad| (L]
At 31 Decentber 2012 1522 282
Groug Comparyy
£m £m
Cost and net book valys
At § January 2011 1304 282
Exchange adjustment ©9 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 263 -
impaimment (19) kil
A1 11 Decemnber 2011 1539 m2
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8 Goodwill (centinued)

The g ill has boen 10 cash unds (CGUs) and a summary of the camying amourts of goodwill by op g seq {rep groups of cash generating units) at 31
Decamber is a3 foliows
Country
Broadline Choice  MaJ Baafood Total
£m Em Em £m
Unsted Kingdom sz me o Ta
Continental Europs (L1 . x 11]
At 31 December 2012 902 268 bl 1528
Country
Eroadiine Chaica MaJ Seafood Total
£m £m £m Em
United Kingdom 352 268 380 978
Continental Europe 58 1 - 81
At 31 Decernber 2011 913 266 380 153 %
The Broadline the core foodservice cash units In the UK the trading ies Brake Bros Limited Wild Harvest Limitad O'Kane Food Sarvice
Limded Freshiayre Limeted Braks Bms Foodservica Irelsnd Limded and in C Europe fi princt the trading companies Brake France Sarvice SAS i France and Menigo
Foodservice AB In Sweden The Country Choics business segment comprises of the treding company Britké Bros Foodservice Limited
impairmant reviews
An iew of impali 1Bviews by operating segment is s&t 0ut belew The recoverable amount of a GGU s on valye-i These use pre-tax
cash flow projeciions based on internal forecasts approved by management covering the next period  Subsequent cash flaws beyond are lated using the growth rato stated below

The key assumpthons in the value in use calculstions wers

- Revenue growih This was based on expecied levels of attivity under existing major contractusl errangements together with growth bassd upon mediurn term historical growth retes and having
rogard for expx and market for other customers

Cperating cost growth  This assumption was basaed upon managerment 3 expectation for each significant product line having regand for & and exps d in market
condiions

Discount rates The discount rates appiled to the cash flow projeciions are based on an appropriste weighted average cost of capital for the group and reflect Specific qsks relating 10 the relevant
operatng segments

The forecasts are based on ihe appioved plan g the next year cash flows kave baen forecast to increase by 3 25% (2011 3 25%) in line wilh the long term

GDP growth raie and inchuding infistion based on histerical growth  The cash fiows in the UK and Condinental Enmope were discounied using pre-iax

discountt rates of © 8% (2011 10 1%) in the UK, B 5% (2011 10 5%} In Frlnm and 7 9% (2011 10 5%} In Swaden

The resuits of Lhe i L reviews b MmacGUshlvumcwmmmlnaxmofmemmerme Al For the tmp reviews a Yy anatysis
in critcal and In note 1 1o the fi 4 ) has been p on the key used in the amount of the CGUs

7 Intangible Assets

Customer
contracts and Computer

Brands relationships saftware Tatal
Group Em £m Em £m
Cost o valuation
At 1 January 2012 61 150 582 %3
Exchange adjustment - {0 4} {04
Additions - o3 24 87
At 31 Decamber 2092 61 163 472 (113
Accumulated amortisation
Al 1 January 2012 o8 70 424 433
Exchange adjustment - {03} {3
Charge for the yasr o3 11 71 45
At 31 Dacembaer 2012 os 01 492 [ A
Net book value at 31 December 2012 £3 72 18 0 305
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7 Intang|ble Asssts (continuad)

Customer
contracts and Computer
Brands relationships softwane Total
Group £m £m £m im
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2011 30 130 510 670
Exchangs sdjustment - [T] L1L)]
Acquisition of subsidsaries 3B ag 35 10
Additions - 53 53
Disposals ©5) (19 (10) 34
At 3 December 2011 81 150 582 ik}
Accumuisted amorsation
At 1 January 2011 02 57 LY.} a7
Exchange adjustmemn - e 04
Acquisition of subsidiaries 0z o6 21 29
Charge for the year 01 12 59 72
Impainnent 03 14 - 19
Disposals {05 (19 o (24
At 31 Decarmnber 2011 05 10 424 43 9
Net book valus at 31 Decamber 2011 56 80 158 294
Customner
contracts and Computer
Brands relsticnships software Total
Company £m Em Em Em
Cost or valustion
At 1 January 2012 22 61 BT 480
Addrions - 03 &8 "
Reclassification - {01) 01}
At 31 Decombar 2012 22 54 434 520
Accunulated amertisation
At 1 January 2012 02 27 F13 ) 275
Charge fof ihe year 01 K] 46 -]
At 31 Decomber 2012 o3 23 202 328
Net book value at 31 Dacember 2012 19 31 142 182
Customer
comracts and Computer
Brands relationships software: Total
Company £m Em £m £m
Cost or valuation
Al 1 January 2011 22 & 335 418
Adddions - 33 33
Disposals - —fo o1
Al 31 December 2011 22 81 a7 450
Accumulated emortisation
At 1 January 2011 o1 21 10 290
Charge for the yesr 01 08 48 585
At 31 Decermnber 2011 02 27 248 275
Nel book value at 31 December 2011 20 34 121 175
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8 Proparty plant and squipment

Information
Land znd ator Plam ang 1echnology
buildings vehicles equipment hamtwane Total
Group £m £m Em £m £m
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2012 1523 1149 1282 303 4263
Exchange adjustments {18) 03 02 [CR)] {18)
Roclassification 14 0t QAo 0w ©8)
Agditions 134 208 53 18 400
Disposal of subsidiary 0 on [{3]
Disposals (41 _(98) 53 (03 [
At 3 Decesnbar 2012 1814 1351 11850 324 438
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 Janvary 2012 w02 643 1 233 2480
adjustment @en a1 @3 (1]
Reclassification ©4) 0z (12) o8 oe
Chamge for the ysar 51 1] T8 29 24
Disposal of subsidlary - 02 @8 o8
Disposals (3% 24 (49 03 {19 1)
At 31 December 2012 7 728 I %7 2899
Net book valua a1 31 Decembaer 2012 227 625 21 57 1840
Infoemation
Land and Motor Plant and {echnology
buildings. vehicles equipment hardware Total
Group £m £m Ern £m £m
Cost of valuation
Al 1 January 2011 1428 1052 1184 278 w20
Exchange adjustments ()] {04 (L2 )] [LR)) [t RI]
Redassification (X)) {on Yy 3 8)
Acquisition of subsidiaries ae 104 LA 17 278
Additiona 95 125 # 3o 41
|3, (08 {zmn [ch}] (18 (20 5)
At 3 Decernber 2011 1523 1149 1288 303 4263
Accumulatad depreciation
A1 January 2011 L1 585 814 215 2284
Exchange scjustment ©8 03) ©5) (09 an
Reclassification an @1} - Qs
Acquistion of subsidiaries 25 74 70 11 180
Charge for the yesr 49 124 a0 28 270
Disposals _ _ (0 8) (116} (40 (19 —{190)
Al 31 Decamber 2011 702 B4 3 911 233 2480
Netl book value at 31 December 2011 821 508 317 7o 1774
Land and bulidings comprise
2012 2011
Em £m
Cost
Freehold 1133 1273
Long leasehold 94 08
Short Isasshokd 87 142
151 4 1523
Accumulated dapreciation
Freehold 545 579
Long leasshok EY) aa
Short leasehold 104 18
687 702
Assals heki under finance leases have the following net book amount
012 2m
£m £m
Cost e 555
Accumulatod depreciation {223 _(300)
Nat booh amount 453 248
Land and tulidings 75 az
Motor vehicles 377 158
Ptant and squipment a1 a8
HNst book amoum 53 248

—_—
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8 Property plant and equipment (continusd)

Informatian
Land and Mator Ptar and technology
bulldings vetudes oquipment hardware Tolal
Company im Em £m £m £m
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2012 1 981 845 254 294 2
Reciassification 15 {22) 10 03
Additions 106 "2 F1 oa 246
Disposats (138 77 L) 01 {233}
At 31 Dacamber 2012 (X 10148 827 274 2958
Accumulsted depreciztion
At 1 January 2012 It 528 593 198 1708
Reclassification 1) {0 5) (1] 0z
Charge for the year 22 13 40 21 198
Disposals {8 3} 82) 14 {01) {138}
At 3% Dacember 2092 B9 574 LIk 228 1773
Net book valus at 39 Dacember 2012 485 44.2 H3 46 118 8
Information
Land and Motor Plani and technology
buildings vehicles oguipment hamdwers Totat
Compeny £m £m £m £m &m
Cost or valuation
Al 1 January 2011 80 7e LI) 241 2007
Transfers from group undertakings 02 02
Reclassification @y (] ]
Additions 34 168 52 21 218
Disposals {10 6) a3 (08} (127
AL M December 2011 281 o1 “e 254 294 2
Accumuisted depreciation
AL January 2011 408 509 566 1.7 187 0
Transfers from group undartakings 02 02
Reclassificatlon @Bn an
Chamge for the year 20 111 40 19 190
Disposats (8 B) (1 3) (08} an
At 31 December 2011 M1 528 503 198 i70s
Net book value al 31 Decamber 2011 470 455 253 38 D4
Land and buildings comprise
2012 2011
£m £m
Cost or valuation
Freehokt 353 G990
Long leasehokd 94 108
Short leasahold 197 54
o4 8381
Accumulated depreciation
Freehoid %7 2
Long laasshaid 36 44
Short leasehokd 1] 35
a5 9 31
Assets held under flnance lsases have the following net beok amount
2012 2011
£m £m
Cost or valustion “"us s
Accumulzied depreciation {198} 215
Net book amount 223 138
Motor vehicies 222 134
Ptant end equipment 01 0z
Net book amount 223 138
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9 {a) Investments in subsidiares

At cost Provision Net book value
Company £m £m £m
Al 1 January 2012 2107 {28 0) 2427
Disposa! of subsidiary undertaking 29 29
Capital reduclion in subsikdiary (26 9) 26 9)
Impainent ©9) {288) @77
2400 (51 8) 138 1

Investments are recorded at cost which IS the far value of

pad The

consider that the value of 1ha nvesiments are suppoited by their underlying assets

During the year the camying value of the Invesiments have been reviewed i Conunction with the impairment reviews carried out on goodwll (see note 6)  Follewang this review impa:nments have
ansen when writling down mvestments in ceftain dormant ctenpanies to the camying value of the underlying assets

On 3 July 2012 the Company of i's i in Browns Foodservica Limited This tment was imp in the p year
The Y g5 at 31 Ox 212 and 31 December 2011 unless otherwise stated are listed as follows
Gountry of Percentage
Name of Company incorporation interest held Operating o,

The principal trading subsidiary undertakings are a!l involved in the supply of frozen chilled and ambient foods as well as catenng supplies and equipment Lo the catering incustry and are as follows.

Braka Bros Limited

Brake Bros Foogservics Limited

M) Seafood Limited

Wild Harvest Limited

Freshfayre Limited

O Kane Food Service Limited

Brake Bros Foodservice Ireland Limeed
Braks France Service SAS

Menigo Foodservice AB

Name of Company

England and Wales
England and Wates
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
Norther Irefand
Repubidic of Ireland

Qther subsidiary undentaxings are as follows
Frading companies
Servicestyckama | Johanneshov AB
Isakssons Frukt & Griint AB
Frukiserice | Helsingborg AB
Reslaurangakademien AB

Brake France Développement

Mon trading holding companies
Cidron Food Hokding S arl

Cxtron Food Services S arl

Brake Franca SAS

Dormant companiag and other non-trading companias
Brakes Limited

Campbell & Neill Limited

Ceams & Brown (Southem) Limited
John Moms Leasing Limited
Stockflag Limred

Taste of the Wild Limited

W Paufey & Co Limted

Watson & Philip Ceams & Brown (South East) Limited
Woodward Foodservice Limited
Scotia Campbell Marine Limited
Menigo Foodservice Norge AS
Fruktserico | Maima AB
Fastighetsaktiebolagel Guldfrukten i Lund AB
Menigo Invest 1 AR

Menigo Invest 2 AB

Carigel SA

SCI Banctn Montegut

SCI Le Dauphin

Soclété Bretonne Alimentawe
Financiére Du Rohein

SCI De Boiseau

SCI De Garcslles

Group Rault

SCI JD Lanjouan

Rault Lemballe

Rault Sud

Rault Vendome

Rault Names

Rault Caen

The Y Browns f ice Limited was

of during the year

100 D0% Unaed Kingdom
100 00% Unred Kingdom
100 00% Unried Kingdom
10000% Unded Kingdom
100 00% United Kingdom
8000% Unrted Kingdom
80 00% Republic of treland

France 100 00% Continental Europe
Sweden 88 67% Continental Europe
Country of Percentage
incorporaticn intsrest hald
Sweden 83 87%
Sweden 66 67%
Sweden 6667%
Sweden 3334%
France 100 00%
Luxemboury 862 07%
Luxembourg 66 87%
Franca 100 DO0%
England and Wates 100 00%
England and Wales 100 09%
England and Wales 100 00%
England and Wates 100 00%
England and Wales 100 00%
England and Wales 100 00%
England and Wales 50 00%
England and Wales 100 00%
England and Watles 100 00%
Scolland 100 00%
Sweden 88 87%
Sweden 68 67%
Sweden 66 67%
Sweden 66 67%
Sweden 68 67%
France 100 00%
France 100 00%
France 100 00%
France 100 00%
France 100 00%
France 100 00%
France 100 00%
France 100 00%
France 100 00%
France 100 00%
France 100 00%
France 100 00%
France 100 00%
France 100 00%
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9 (b) Investments in associates

22 2011
Group and comparry Em £m
At 1 January - 137
Share of profit - o9
1 of assoclate - (148)
At 31 Dacembar -
10 Inventories
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2om
Em Em Em £
fRaw materiats and consumablos 28 23 20 17
Firnshed s and for cesale 1098 04 557 489
112 1 1017 g07 48 8
11 Trade and other receivables
Group Company
2012 20m 2012 2011
Em £m Em Em
Trads recaivabies 1108 s 143 15
Trade receivables factored 154 ¢ w2z -
Less provision for impairment of recelvables {313 (3]
Trade receivables nel 2557 241 149 15
Amounts owed by group undertakings - 554 azs
Armounts owed by parent undertakings 2801 870 T 370
Loans cwed by parent undertakings [ 78" 488 (78] 486
Loans owed by group undertakings 44 108
Qther recelvables 27 59 15 15
_Prepayments 153 148 % 54
808 7 8704 420 % 500 7
During the year certain subsitlary companias of the Group sold trade receivables (o a special purposs entity Brake Bros Recah Limitad In with SIC 12 ("Consolidation - Special
Purposa Eninlies”) Brake Bros Limtod 15 within the results of the Group mnmammumnmmm-mlmmgmmm.
bank and thess &3 ary hy in the note above The has been for as & i g (sen noie 15) in case Brake Brus Receivables Limied

defaults under (hs loan agreement the landaf has the right to receive the cash flows from the recelvables transferred  Without default Brake Bros Recelvables Limited wilk coltect the recaivables and
allocate new recelvables as coltateral  The total smount plecned as collaterat for borrawanas is £154 0m (2011 £182 Bm)

The crestion and releasa of a provi: for tha letpaired 2 have basn o diwredd purchase costs In the income statement
Concentraticns of credit rizk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the Group's customer base being large and tated Due 1o this believe thera is no further credit risk
provision required in excess of the nommal provision for doubtful receivables Th tha expoaure to credi risk s ihe reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable The group

and Company do nol hoid any collstéral as sscurity
A3 of 31 December 2012 Group trade reeivablos of £210 3m (2011 £198 2m) and Company trede receivebles of E14 8m (£2011 £1 5m) wera fully perdorming

As of 31 Decernber 2012 Group trade recelvables of £45 1m {2011 E37 Sm) were past due bul not impeired These relate to a number of customers for whom thers is no recent hisiory of default
Tha ageing analysis of thesa irade recenables i as taliows

Group Comparny
2012 20m 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Up to 3 months. 444 -1 -
310 8 months or 15 -
451 375 -
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11 Trade and other receivables (continued)

As of 31 D ber 2012 tade of £9 4m (2011 MTm)mnWmdlevidsdhr Theunuunluilhumwlsinnmtﬂimlso{ﬂbeoomhﬂﬂ)‘!(ﬂﬂ £8 3m} The individualy
impaired recsivables mainty ratate to which ars in P H was that & pacten of the I 8xpx 1o ba The ageng
analysis of these trade recsivables Is as follows
Group Company
2092 2011 2 2011
£m Em £&m £m
LUp o 3 months 29 23 -
3 to 8 months 30 22 -
Over 6 months 38 42 -
2.4 a7 -
The bock value of irade and olher recervablea with a maturity of less (than ona year are assumed approximate to falr value
Tha carrying amounts of the irade and othar ivables arm d inv the following
Group Company
2012 2011 012 2011
£m Em Em im
Pounds 5022 5767 4200 4998
Euros 837 499 o7 04
Swedish Krona 508 438 02 o5
808 7 8704 420 8 5007
is on the p ion for imp of trade are a3 follows
Group Company
2012 2011 012 o1
Em £m Em £m
AL 1 January 83 [ ) - 3
Exchange adjustmant {o1) ©n - -
Acquisition of subsidiares - 1% -
Ameounts trensfermod to group underlakings - - ({31
Pravislon for Y 42 - -
Receivables written off durlng the year as uncellectible 3N [CR)] -
At 31 December 21 23 -
Concentrations of credil fisk with respect o trade receivables ane limded due o the Group's customer base being lerge end U Due to this nt believe thers |s no further credit risk
provision required In excess of a nomnal provision for impaired i ™ e P to credit risk gt the reporting date is the ruir vajue of sach ciass of receivable Tha
Group and Company does not hold any collateral as security
Tha other classes within trade and other receivables do conisin impaired assets
12 Cash and czsh equivalents
Group Company
2012 2m 2012 o1
£m £m £m Em
Cash at bank and in hand 859 881 4459 27
Shorl terrn bank deposits 2s 791 [ L) 754
168 4 145 2 1249 981

The effective interest rute on short {enn deposils was 0 25% (2011 O 25%) and Lhese deposits have an average matunty of 1 day (2011 1 day) The affective inleresi rate on company cash at bank
and In hand is 0% (2001 0%)

13 Trade and other payables

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Em £m £m £m
Trade payablos 3508 a2 2822 2239
Amoints owsd to parent undenakings a0 180 5 a8 144 8
Amounts owad 16 group urxdsnakings - 195 5291
Other taxes and socizl sectirity 2e 22 3 54
Oiher payables 168 190 02 o7
Accruals 431 21 as 24
507 2 5720 458 8 5363
AMounts owed to group and parent undertakings ane non-interest besring #nd are rep on di d
14 Curreat tax labilites
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Em Em £m Em
Cofporation tax - overseas a2 02 -
02 02
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15 F les - bor 9
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Current £m £m £m £m
Loans owed to parent undertakings 139 2718 1739 75
Loans owed to group undertakings a1 W7
Lean notes 04 04
Bank lcans t4 aop
Financs lease obligations 1z8 72 [-3] 58
s 1 09 728
Group Campany
2012 2011 012 201
Non-turmemt £mn £m £m £m
Loans owed 1o parent undertakings 139 275 139 275
Losns owed io group undertakings - 1 397
Losn notes as 1t
Bank loans 164 8 18135 -
Debl issue cosis @xn 35
Financo iease ctigations 4140 2 232 147
20T 4 2078 a2 818
Less amounis falling due within one year {27 &) (38 1} 120 9} Tz
1799 18_9 7 183 91
The bank loans hive been obizined pursuant to a dat factoring agn Certain of the paremi are secured by way of a fixed and flosiing charge over the assets of tha Group
Furiher information regarding this is given in nola 11 of tha financial siatsments
The carrying amounts of tha Group and C y's ae d in the
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 20m
Em £m £m £m
Pounds Sterling 1459 154 2 233 288
Eures 167 32 oo g3
Swedish Krona “e 504 130 138
207 4 207 8 372 819

The maturity f borrowings is sei out in note 16{(a) The exposure of the Group ’nd the Company (o interest rate changes 18 a3 follows

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 201
Em £m Em £m
Borrowings at floating interest raies 1596 1620 140 B7 2
Fixed rate bormowings matuding
within one year 7 [-}] (3] 58
one to five years 38 333 180 34
aver five years 131 o7 13 57
207 4 2078 372 316
The affective inferest rates at date of the statement of financlal posdion wers as follows
Group
2012 2011
Bank Kans 31% 4%
Finance leass obligations 5% &%
Loans owed to parent undertakings 8% 5%
18 Financial instruments
18 {a) Fi -
Disclosures in respect of Uve Group $ financial rsks i set oul below  Addiaional disclosures am set out In the Accounting Policies (on pages 1210 18} and disch in resped of

Instrurnents are set oul in note 18(b) 18{c) and 18(d}
Financia! risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group has operations In the UK the Republic of treland Francs and Swedan and has deb financing which exposes it to a varety of financis! risks thet inciude the effects of changes In debt markey
prices foreign cumency exchange rates cradi risks mm-mwmmu Thqumhulnmnmkmmmmemummmmﬂmhloﬂmnmmeﬂmmmeﬁnm
porformance of the Group by using forewgn curmency debi 1o hedge and interest hedging agreementa 1o (lmt the impad from potsndial future intsrest rate Increasss.

The Group's board of directors have the responsibility for setting the sk management policios applled by the Group The policies are implemented by the cortral freasury depariment that recerves
regular reports from the opersiing companies to enzble prompt identification of financial risks so that the appropriate actions may be taken The Group has & policy and procedures manyal that sets cut
specific guidslines to manage foreign currency exchange risk interest rale dsk crexti fsk liquidity risk and the use of financial Instruments to manage thess

(@ Foreign currency exchange risk
The Group has sperations in the UK, the Republic of Irtland Francs and Sweden The Group is 1o foreign ge risks pri wih respeci 1o the Euro and Swadish Krons  Exposure to
the Swadish Krona 15 nol considersd material The Group has certain im in foreign op: ‘whoss nat assety are to forexgn tr risk. Cumency exposute arising

from the nel assets of the Group's foresgn operations ks mansged rimarity through borrowings denoménated in the Euro
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18 FI ol

18 {(a) Financial - {i ]
(@) Inforest rate risk

The Group has both interest besring sssats and Interest bearing llabilities The Group's ivierest rate risk primarily arises from floating interest rate kong term bormowings  Borrowings bssuad &! varisble
rates axpose the Group 1o cash flow interest rate sk During 2012 the Group's bormowings at vartable rate ware prmerily denominated in the UK Pound The Group analyses #s interest rate exposure
to @ shift in interest rates The Group calculstes the impact on profit and loss of a definad interest rate shit The scendirios am run ondy for assets and liabilities that represent the major interest bearing
pasitions Based on the simulations perfarmad the IMPac on Post tax PRt 97 & 19% $hifl would ba a maximum (noreate of decrease of £0 3m

(W) Croddt risk
The Group has no snificant concentrailons of gredit risk  Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents as well as credit exp to including and d
trensactions For banks independently rated parties within the band A rating are used for the mam Group banking requirements &nd whersver possible for y day to day

I s For risk control the credit quality of the custorner taking ito acoount fs financizl posiiion pasi expertencs and other tactors  (ndividual risk limis are S8t based on
inimi or extenal rtings  The Group hes implemented policies that requine appropriate credil checks on 3 before sales

The table below shows the credi eaiing and balanco of the mapr bank counterparies st iha date of the statement of (inencial posdion A fufl analysis of cash at bank and short term deposits ts Included
in nole 18{d} 10 the financisl staterments

202 2011
Group Balanca Balance
Counterpanty. Rating £m Rating Em
Bank A A+ 1258 A+ 973
Bank B A 28 A+ kA
Bank C A+ 121 A4 103
Bank D A na A+ 131
Bank E A o4 A 28
Bank F BB+ 54 BB+ a4
Bank G A 128 A+ sS4
Bank H A os A a4
Bank | AR o3
Bank J AAs 04 AA [}
Bank H Ar 1
Bank | Ab- o1
1834 145 1
2012 2011
Company Balance Balance
Counterperty Rating £m Rating £m
Bank A A+ 1224 Ar 925
Bank B A 21 As 27
Bank E A [ X} A 28
124 9 %80
Manegement does not axpect any losses Fiom pon-performance by these counterpanies
(hv) Liquictity sisk
The Group actively maintans 4 mixture of long-term &nd short-term facilitjes that are designed to ensure the Group has funds for and planned
Managermnend montors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve (comprises undrwn bomowing facility (note 18(c)) and cash and cash equivalenis (nete 12)) on the basis of expectad cash flow
The labls below the Group's ilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period st the dats of the stetement of financial posdion lo the contracl Maturity data
The amounts disciosed 11 the lable are the cash flows due within 12 months are ngt discounted a3 the impadt of discounting is not sigmificant
Lass than Between ore Batween two Ovar five

one year  and two ysars  and five yeary years Total
At 31 Dacamber 2012 £m £m Em Em £m
Barrowings F12 ] 11 188 9 18 2074
Trade and other payables excluding statutory llatilities AB4 & - - 484 8
Total 512.1 111 184 9 19 8920

Less than Between one Batween two Over Mive

one year and two years  and flve years years Towl
At 31 December 2011 £m £m £ £m £m
Bormowings I 1] 10 LLTE ] 2078
Trads and ather payables excluding statutory liabiltes 5518 - 5518
Total 589 9 09 10 167 & 750 &

Cagital sk management
The Group's objactives wiven managing capiel ae Lo safeguard Lha Group's sbilty to contwe B3 1 Qoing concem in order to provide returms for sharetholders and te maintein 2o ogmal capial
$truciure 1o feduce the cost of capidal  These abjectives are managed t the ultimate UK Group level Cucina Lux Investmants Limuted rather than &t a lower Group level

The overall detx and equily structure of the Company s under the control of the uitimate parent cornpany Cucina {BC) Luxce S 41 There are no external captal requirements on the Company
Further details of the share capetal of the Company can be found in note 20 of Lhe financial statements
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18 Financial instruments (continued)

16 (b) Financial Instrumanis by category

The accounting policies for financial iInstruments have been apphied 1o the tine tems below

2012 201
Loans and Loans and
recervables recetvables
Group £m £m
At 31 Dacember
Assets as per stat of i ial p
Trade and gther receivables 5914 8558
Cash and cash equivalents 168 4 1452
1598 4008
2012 201
Qther financial  Qther financiat
liabilties llatxities
Group £m £m
At 31 December
L as per of fi p
Financial llatwlities - bormowings 2074 2078
Trade and ciher payabiss excluding statutory liabilities 4848 5518
8920 756 8
2012 2011
Loans and Loans and
receivables recesvables
Company £m £m
At 31 Decembaer
Assels as per of
Trade and cther receivables 4120 4923
Cash and cash equivalents 1249 98 1
515 9 5904
2012 2011
Qthar financial - Other financiak
liabilrtres liabslies
Company £m £m
At 3t Dacamber
L as par of financial
Financial llabeities - bormowings 3Tz 819
Trade and olher payables excluding statutory hatiilies 480 2 5309
49T 4 81218
16 (c) F
Set oul balaw are numerical disclosures in respect of the Group s financial instruments
Fair values of non-derivative financial asssts and liabilitles
Where market values are nol availatde fair values of financial assets and financial have been by future cash flows at prevatling interest rates and by applying
year end exchange rates The bock value of short term bomowings is approximate to faw value
At 31 December 2012 At 31 December 2011
Book value Fair value Book value Farrvalue
Group £m Em £m £m
Primary financial instruments held or issued to finance the Group 5 operations
Shart term financial liatilities and current portion of long term bomowings {21 8§ {27 8) (=L )] @8 1)
Other long temm bormowings {17 9) {162 6) (169 ) (148 2)
Trade and ¢ther payables {50T 2} (507 2) 5720 (572 0y
Trade and tther receivables 5914 5014 8558 8556
Cash and cash equivalents 160 4 160 4 1452 1452
Retirement benefit cbigations {63 5 {63 5) 801 (60 1)

The book values of shod term bank deposits ipans and other bomowings with a maturity of Jess than on

borrowings dua In more than one year the fair value of financial for pup 15
rate available to the Group for similar financial iInstruments

Com| pany

g the futues

At 31 December 2012

0 year are assumed 10 approximate to their fair values (tn ihe case of bank loans and other
d by di | cash flows at the curment estimated market interest

Al M Decernber 2011

Book value Fair value Book value Fair vatue
£m £m £m £m
Primary financial instruments hakd or issued to fingnce the Group's operations
Shoart term financial liabiities and current poriion of long tenm bomowinga (209) {209) 728 [trd]
Other long tafm borrowings (183 {12.0) 1) 3]
Trade and other payables (468.5) {468 &) (536 3) {538 )
Trade and gther receivables. 49120 4120 4923 4923
Cash and cash equivalents 1249 1249 881 851
Retirement benefil obligations (337) {381 (38 8) (18
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16 (c) Fmancial Instruments numerical disclosures {continued)

Borrowing facillties

The Group headed by Brake Bros Limred has undrawn q b g faciities at 3 D 2012 of £12 5m (2041 £12 4m} These are at floating interest rates and expire beyond
ona year

The minimum jease payments under flnance leases fall dus as follows

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Em £m Em £m
Mol |ater than one year 150 20 a5 86
Later ihan one year but not mora than flve 295 120 178 107
More than five years 21 @5 15 -
488 225 275 173
Future finance champes on finance feases {56) (33) {43 26}
Prazent valus of finance leaso habilitins 410 182 232 14 7

16 {d) Ceadit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are nerther past due nor impalred can be assessad by reference to our Group risk profile indication based upon information provided by our extemal credil
agencies.

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Trade raceivables
Low risk 1508 127 4 148 [+
Mediurm nsk 462 547 - 04
High risk 132 141 - 03
Total trada recelvables 210 3 108 2 149 15
Thesa categories of risk reflect the relatve credit risk attnbeutable to our trade receivables
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and short term deposits (see nots balow)
AA 08 114 - -
A+ 1506 1219 12485 952
A 113 a2 [} 28
A oe B R
BB + 54 1] - -
163 4 145 1 124 9 28 0

The rest of the statement of financial possion dem cash and cash equivalents is cash in hand

17 banefit

The Group operates a number of pension schemes for its UK employees ihe asseis of all schemas being held in separate trustes adeministered funds These pension schernes are operated by the
Company

The Brake Bros pic Pension Scheme was closed to new entrants in June 2001 and was closed to exisling employsas at 31 Decaember 2003 No fuitheér benefits are o r o
this date The scheme is a contracted out defined benefil scheme providing final salary related benefits accruing 1/80th for each year of service and a lump sum 10 the event of death in service

The Brakes Money Purchass Pension Plan 1s contracted into the State pension scheme and minimum contribution ralas are 3% of pensionable salary for members and 4% for employers with higher
employess contnbutions for managers  Funds are invested with Legal & General Investmeant Managerment

In addition in Continenial Europe the Group 15 bable for certan posl emplayment benefits which meet ihe criterla of a defined benefit plan These obligatlons are of an unfunded nature

Pension costs for defined contnbution schemes are as follows

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Defined contribution schemes. K] 54 48 4 4
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17 benefit )
Dufined benefit plana
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 o1
Retirement banefit obligations £m Em £m Em
At 1 January &0 1 248 6 w09
Exchange adjusiment o1 wn - -
on of Y ur 0 - 1o . -
Interest on obligstion 87 a8 L1 ] T4
Expecied roturm on schems assets {82) we) 82 (2]
Obligatons acrued in the year 11 ¢5 . -
Cantributions paid in ihe year 38) @3 (EX 4] z0)
Actuanial losses tecognisad in equity 45 160 47 181
At 31 Dacamber 835 80 1 337 e
Brake Bros plc Penslon Sch benefil uptoam amount af £20 0m (2011 £20 0m) are sacured by way of 4 Char® over Cernain property plant and equipment of the
Group
The mast recent actuarial valuation of The Brake Bros pic Pension Schems was carried oul 1 5 April 2010 The princlpal lons made by the for the years ended 31 December were
M2 2011
% %
UK assumplions
Rate of in n and 29 30
Discount rate 47 49
Infation assumgption RPI 285 3
Infiation assumption CPI 228 22
Expected fetum on plan kssety 58 57
Fronceo assurmplions.
Dlecount rate 125 43
Sweden assumptions.
Diseount rito 16 ia
Salgry increass 0 30
Inflation 20 20
Mortality rare UK assomptions
p L future [ rh are sei basad on advica and pyblished statistics The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring st sge 85 on the daie of 1he staternent
of financial pasition is a3 Tollows
2012 2011
Mals ns ns
Famale 239 239
The average life cy In years of a relnng sl age 85 20 years after the date of iha statement of financlal position is as foliows
2012 2011
Maks 228 228
Female F ) 255
Pansh and other post
The amounis recognised in the statement of financial position at 31 December are determined as follows
2012 2011 2010 2009 2003
Group £m £m Em £m Em
Prosent valus of funded obligations 1938 13289 167 a 184 7 1321
Present valua of unfunded obligations 2408 235 a7 33 a
Fair value of plan assets {154 9) {148 3) (145 0) {134 3) {119
Net pengion ||-u||!1 recopnised in the statement of nancial position 818 G_B_1 240 A7 180
Experience gains | (fusses) on plan assets for the year iz 3 4] 80 (28%)
Exparience (losses) / gains on schema llabilties for the yesr {11) {128} (% 3) (287 195
2012 2011 2010 2000 2003
Company Em £m £m £m Em
Preser value of funded obligations 198 1826 1672 1847 1321
Fair valve of plan assets (164 9) {148 3) {148 9) (134 3) {1192y
Net pension liabitty recognised In the of position 87 We 209 304 129
Experience iliﬂ!f"ﬂ} on plan assals for the year 32 T 3 75 LL:) {28 9}
Experience (osses) / gains on schems Rabilities for the year {78) (08 {9 2) (286) 198
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17 i benefit obligatl

Anstysls of movemont in present value of pension obligations

Group Compary
w012 201 2 2011
£m £m Em £m
At 1 January 205 4 ms 1829 1678
Exchange adjustmen o1 o7} - -
On of subsidlary 180 - -
Interes! cost a7 98 2t 94
Actuarizl losses 77 128 79 e
Contributions paxd by emplayer {08 02 - -
Obligstions sccrusd in Lhe year 11 05 - -
Benefits paid {80} 51 (s o) 51
At 31 Decamber 218 4 208 4 193 & 1020
Repressnted by
Funded cbligabions 1834 1828 1938 1829
Unfunded sbligatiens wus 235
2184 208 4 193 6 182 9

Analysls of movement In falr value of scheme assets

Group and Company

012 201
£m £m
At 1 January 1443 1469
Expected retum on plan asseis a2 98
Actuariul gaing / (osses) 3z 73
GConinbutions paid by employer 32 20
Benefits paid {80} (51}
At 31 Decomber 154 % 148 3

Tha cument contribution schadule in place will hava the Group &nd Company make a cash contribution of £2 2m in respect of the UK retirement benafil cbiigeilons in tha year ending 31 Decamber
2013 On 31 December 2012 a payment of £1m was made in respect of the £2 2m scheduled contributions due in 2013 leaving s batance of £1 2m due for payment in 2013

Tha assets in the scheme and the expected rete of retum were

2012 20M

Long term Lang term

rita of retum rate of retumn
expected Value expected Valus
per annum % £m per annum % £m
Equities T3 BT 75 8835
Bonds 33 598 35 587
Other assets 53 197 a4 181
11 154 8 57 1483

Tha oversll expeciod refum on schome assats is determined by reference to the axpocted rates of retum on sach class of asset staled sbove (opEther with the expected profite of itvestments held

The I the

tnterest obligation  included within interest casts
Expected retum on schame assats . Inchuded within interest mcetvabls

Net axesnse

Group actuarial losses of £4 5m (2011 £19 9m} were recognised in Lhe ysar and

in tha of

Company actuanal losses of £4 Tm (2011 £18 1m) were recognised in the yesr nd i

incomae is E53 5m (2011 £49 Om)

n the

of
incoma since the Company's transiion 10 IFRS amount Lo a koss of £45 m (2011

The actual gain on plan assats was £11 4m (2011 £2 5m)

Group Company
012 01 M2 2011
£m £m £m Em
47 98 ne 94
[LE9] 98 [L¥] o8
18 08 Q4
of ive incoms  The amount of rial lossas
P income The cumutstive emount of actuarial gains and lossas
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18 for other and ch
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 20
Property dilapidation cbligations £m £m £m £m
Al 1 January 121 o6 133 .1
Crediled to the income statement during the year 03 ©3)
Provisions for property plent and equipment additions during the year X ] 20 LX ] 08
Litized during the yoar 02 - ©1)
At 31 December 127 121 91 85
Non-current 13 M4 77 L]
Current 14 o7 14 Q7
127 121 21 a5
Property P relats to | hold property hehd try the groug and primarily represant sbligations to reinstate propedy to 2 odginal condition at the and of the lease term
19 Defered tax assets
The mavement on the defermed tax sccount ks as shown below
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 201
Em £m Em £m
Deterred thx assats
At 1 January azz 315 274 209
Apquisition of subsidiaries - 01 -
Exchangs adfustrsn o1 o1 -
Tax credit on reurement benefit obtigation actuarial ioss taken directly 10 other comprehensive income 04 47 o4 41
(Charged) / credited 10 the Income statement in the ysar 18 0 ()] 24
At 3 Decernber 308 322 264 274
Deferred tax assets and (labilities are only offset where there Is a legally entorcaable nght of offset and there ts 41 intertion to settls the balances nat
Retirernent Other
benefil femporary
obligations Tax losses differences Total
Group, £m £m £m £m
Dwfarrad tax assats
At 1 January 22 97 o7 158 322
Exchange adjustment . w1} @1
Tax credit on retirement benefit obfigation acluarial loss taken direcily to olher cornprehensive incoms T4 . G4
{Chagod) / credited to ithe Income staternem In the year (1} 04 (X)) {19)
At 31 Dacembar 2012 108 70 128 308
Retirement Qther
benefit ternporary
obligations Tax losses differences Todal
Group £m Em £m £m
Deferrad tax assels
At 1 January 2011 57 98 180 Nns
Acquisition on subsidiades 19 (s8] o1
Exchange sdfustment oy wn
Tax credil on retirement banefit obbgation actuarial loss Laken direcily (o olher comprehensive incoms 47 47
{Charged) / credited to the Income statement In the year [ {49 16 (40
At 31 December 2011 87 &7 158 22
Retirement Olher
benefil temporary
obigations Tax lossas diffarences Total
Company £m £m £m £m
Dafarred tax assets
Al 1 January 2012 92 44 138 274
Tax credit onr benefit obligath lass taken directly to other comprehensive incoms 04 - - o4
(Chamed) / credited 1o the incoma statement in the year {08} 11 {19) {14)
At 31 December 2012 90 X 118 204
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19 Defarred tax assets (continued)

Retement Other
benafit temporary

obligations Tax losses differences Total
Company £m £m £m £m
Deferred 1ax Assets
At 1 January 2011 57 3g 118 209
Tax credn on retiremeni benafit obligation actuarlal loss taken direcily to cther comprehensive ncome 41 - 41
{Charged) / credited to ihe income in the year (08) [+F-] 22 24
Al 31 Decernber 2011 92 44 138 274

Deferred tax assets have been recognised In respect of tax Josses and on temporary differences giving dse to defemed tax assets to the extent that ¢ is considered probable based on intemal

forecasts that these assets will ba recovensd

The net Gmup deferred tax assel expected to ba recovered after more than one year is £27 ?m (2011 £29 4m) There are unrecognised defersd tax assets of £10 1m {2011 £14 4m) in respect of
unutibsed tax losses in the UK The deferred tax credited to other comprehensive income during the year is £0 4m (2011 £4 7m)

20 Share capral

2012 201
Group and Company £m £m
Authorised
58 000 000 (2011 58 D00 00O} ordinary shares of 10p X 58
Onrdinary shares
Issued and ful L] pad of t0p wach Em £m
At 31 Decembar 53 776 540 54 54
Other reserves
21 Resarves Business
combinations
Relained  under common
earmngs contral Olher Total
Group £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2012 4290 (14 1) 134 42853
Retirermnent benefit obligation actuanial koss #5) “5
Taxation on benefit loss 04 04
Gurrency translalion aifferences 30y (<31}
Cash flow hedges - farr value gains 01 o1
Profit for the year 437 437
At 31 December 2012 483 6 14 1) 105 4650
Clher reserves
Business
combinations
Retaned  under common
eamings control Other Total
Group £m £m £m Em
At 1 Japuary 2011 404 0 - 180 4200
Retirernent benefit abligation actuarial loss {1889 - {19.9)
Taxaticn on benefit loss 4 4 - 44
©On acquisdion of subsidiary undertaking (141) {141)
Currency transtation differences - @n @n
Cash flow hedges  fair value gains - 01 LR ]
Profit for the year 405 405
At 31 Decamber 2011 4290 (14 1} 134 4283
Inctuded wathin other are gains of £8 Sm {2011 £12 5m) and gans on the fair value of cash flow hedges of £1 Om (2011 £0 8m}
Retained
eamings Other Total
Lompany £m £m
At 1 January 2012 76 4 107 w1
Profit for the year 144 - 144
benafit loss “n - “n
Defened tax on retirement benefit obligation actuarial loss 04 - 04
At 31 December 2012 365 107 w2
Retained Other
eamings reserves Total
Company £m Em £m
At 1 January 2011 3536 107 848
Profil for the year k'R 385
benafit eblig: rigl loss {18 1) (181}
Deferred tax on retirement benefit obiigation actuarial loss 41 41
At 31 December 2011 T8 4 107 3871
Oiher reserves include £10 9m (2011 £10 9m) in respedt of the differences betwsen the nominal value and fair valus of shares issued for the ac of st Also within

uther reserves afe cumulative axchange losses of £0 2m (2011 £0 2m)
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21 Cash gensrated from oparations

Reconcitiation of profit bafore taxation to cash genarated from oparstions

Group Compary
2012 2011 2012 0m
£m £m £m £m
Profit before taxation 590 852 il 512
Adjustments for
Finance income nz1y {129 (129 {140}
Finance costs 202 180 123 138
Dividends received - - (&3 [:1)
Impalrment of goadwill brands and and - as -
Impeirment of investment - 278 82
DCepraciation charges 324 210 192 190
Amoriisation of itargibles (11 72 53 55
Retlmment benefit contribudlons paid (kX ] @23 32 20y
Share of profit from associate - 09) - {08}
{Profit} / lozs on sale of property plani and equipment 87} 02 67)

} ini (LR} on [LFRI] 45
(Increase) / dacreasa in trade and other recervabies 21.4) e (14 0) 3]
Increase in trade and other payables 68 6 28 444 13
Cash from 1218 128 1 7819 838
23 Employses and dinectors' emoluments

Group Company
Average momnihly humber of people employed by the Group and Compary during ihe year mi 21 202 o)
Number Number Numiber Number
Distritution manufaciuring and selling 9,229 & 440 3788 5529
Administration 351 828 438 488
10,080 9 328 8,254 g018
Group Company
2012 2011 m2 2011
Em £m £m £m
The cosis incurred In respect of thess employees were
Wages and salaries ik 2397 1681 1517
Soclal security costs 487 “o 143 145
Deflned benefit pension costs o9 o2
Defined contribution pension costs {note 17) (1] 54 48 44
3309 216 ] |_90 2 176G 6
Hay management compansation
2017 2011
£'000 £000
Salaries and short term benefits 8858 5168
Post-sm) benefils 423 274
8,079 S 442
The key management figures given above Includs The Greup key 10 be thosa persons who have the authority and responsibility for planming  directing and controlling
the activities of the Group
During the year certain employses heid 2 188 797 050 A-D ordinary shares and loan notes with & nominal value of £4 822 090 in a parent Cucina {UK) 2 Limited 83 part of &

mansgement incentive plan  On 23 November 2012 the aquity element of the management incentive plan which had been in piace $n¢s 18 Judy 2010 was cancelad no IFRS 2 change had previously

been recognised for the equiy setiied shares within this scheme as the fair value of the shares ai the gran date was materially oqual to the market value 1hat employees bad pakd On 23 November

2012 a new package of shares and loan notes in a parent undertaking Cucina Invesiments (UK) 3 Limitod was ontered into with amployess hokding 31 042 45T A ZZ ordinary shares and loan notes wih

# nominal value of £2 662 802 Certain employees redainad their joan notes wihin Cucina Investments (UK} 2 Limited The new shares sre squity settied no (FRS 2 charge is recognisad within the
siat of Cucina {UK) 3 Limitad because the fair value of ihe new equity issuad is considersd to be materialty aqual to ihe market value

The loan notes held by employess in the perent undertaking Cucing Investments (UK) 2 Limited accrus Interest &1 14 75% until Aprid 2013 when the interest then reduces to 7% the loan notes held by
employees in the parent g Cucina | (UK} 3 Limtded accrus Interest at 7%

Diractors of the C. and of Yy 03 hoid 13 268 953 A Z shares and loan noies with & nominal value of £1 055 233 in a parent , Cucing s (UK} 3 Limited and
loan notes with a nominal valus of £982 279 in a parent g Cucina UG 2 Umited

Dirsctors® smolumants

2012 2011
£000 £000
AQQregsate emoluments 2,934 1968
Comparty pension contributions 1o MONeY PUrchsse schemes 184 184
Retirement benefits are socrulng 108 {2011 ) directors under money purchase pension amangements only
Emcluments paid to the highest peld direcior are as follows.
Aggregats emalumerts and benefits 1008 524
Company pension h to money p (1) 80
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24 Commhmaernts

(a) Capital commitments
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m Em E£m
Contractad for but not provided 119 36 111 05

Tha Group (88585 vanous properties and plart and
certain properlles under

(b} Op lease

under Qg lzase a
andg tha total of future mlnlmum Ieusa paymmu expected to ba recotved amounts to £0 4m (2011 £1 2m)

The tetal of future MINIMUM |esss payments in respacl of non-cancellable operating leases are 83 Tollows

The leases have vardous terms end reoewsl nghts  Tha Group has also sublat

w2 2011
Land and Lana amd
buildings Other butidings Cther
Group £m £m £m £m
‘Within cne year 181 43 132 52
Betwaen two 8nd five years .28 (X ] 393 237
After five yoars 103 4 35 a5 147
184 1 18 2 e 438
2012 2011
Land and Land and
bulldings Other buildings Other
Company Em £m Em £m
Within ona year 88 3 58 28
Between two and five years 33 35 w2 53
After five yours 334 - i1-X]
1238 [ 1] 438 19
The Compary and the Group leases various properiies and plant and } under lease og nts The leases have various lerms and renewal righis The Company
and the Group has also sub-lat cerlain properties urder non-cancellsbls Sublaase agreements and the tolal of future mint leass pay to ba by the Group amourts to £0 4m
(2011 £1 2m) and by tha Company amounts to £0 1m (2011 £0 2m)
25 Relsted party transactions
During the year the Company continued 1o provide and recenve funding to and from other Groyp Companies and has elso into certain other with glher Comp: in the Cucina (BC) Luxco
SAar| group Delails of thesa transactions are as follows
2012 20m
£m £m
Loans owed by parent undertakings. 49 438
Loans owed by subs«diary undertakings 44 100
Loans owed ta subsidiary undertsiings 01) (37N
Loans owsd to parent underiakings 39 @5
Amounts owed by parent undertakings 7ae 870
Trade and olher payables owed to parenl undertakings [LS¥.]] (144 8)
Trade and other pavables owad to group undertakings (119.5) 28 1)
Trade and ather 63 owed by 51 Yy i 664 o928
Interest payable to parem undertakings {og) on
Interest payable to subsidlary undanakings {o4) {09
Inieresi recel trom y o o4 04
Interast tvable trom parent 10 25
Sales lo subsidiary undertakings 584 527
172 181

Purchasas from subsidiary undarakings

Neone of the batances owsd to or by parent undertakings

As diaciosad in nole 26 to the the uftimate

or

ara secured

the Group and G also p and

wervices and

and other

£5 9m (2011 £7 6m) wilh E4 3m (2011 £4 Om) Included withun exceplional tems and E1 6m (2011 £3 8m)

¥ services from Bain Capital

ing parties of the Company are Bain Capital Fund X E LP and Bain Capital Fund VIt E LP  In addition to the above iransactions
In 2012 these advisory fedd in the Company amouried o
In sadition to the amounts

by the

within
Company the Group also purthased £1 9m (2011 £nil) of advisory services from Bain Capetal which sre inchxded within deblt issue cosis At the year end amounts owed to Bain Captal by the Group

and Company willun trade and olher pay for

Key is in note 23

y foes

benafil

10 0 4m 2012 (2011 £0 Om)

losed in note 17
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26 URtimate parent company and controlling pary

The Immadiate parent undertaking and comroliing party is Brake Bros Acquistion Limited & company wicorporated in the Unided Kingdom

The ultimate pareni undertaking Is Cucina {BC) Luxco S a r| & privata limsted company reg inL g The ultimate g parties of the Company &re Bain Ceptal Fund IX E LP and
Bain Cepital Fund Vil E LP both are exempted imited partnerships registened in the Cayman Islands which are indirectly controlied by Bain Capital Investors LLC & Delaware Lruted Eabilty company

The parent undertakung of ithe smallest group to cansclidate these financial is Cucgina A {UK) Limdéd #nd the paren| undertaking of the largast UK group to consolidate thess
financial statements is Cucina Lux Investments Limded Copies of Cucina Acquisition (UK) Limried and Cucina Lux | Limited can be from the
Company Secrettry &1 Enterpnse Houss Eureka Business Park, Ashiond Kent TN25 4AG

27 Post batance sheet evants

There were no pos! batance sheel avents

Page 37




